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Financial Highlights: 2015


Solid financial performance against a backdrop of food and fuel price deflation and highly
competitive trading conditions



Total gross sales (excluding VAT) of £844.7m, down 3.0%, although marginally ahead of
the prior year after excluding closed Transport businesses and decreased fuel sales as a
result of falling pump prices.



Trading profit of £20.8m, ahead of expectations, although marginally lower than the prior
year (2014/15: £21.4m)



Profit before tax of £8.8m, up £3.4m (2014/15: £5.4m) and included a dividend of £4.8m
relating to the Society’s investment in Thomas Cook Co-operative Travel Limited



Net debt reduced to £8.4m (2014/15: £21.3m) driven by strong cash generation, good cost
control, lower capital investment and planned property disposals



Capital investment of £29.5m (2014/5: £42.5m)



10 new food stores opened, 4 new funeral homes and significant refurbishment activity
across the business



Good progress made on the realignment of the Society's investment property estate, with a
number of planned disposals completed during the year



Payments to and behalf of stakeholders of £4.7m, broadly in line with prior year (2014/15:
£4.9m)



Significant increase in net assets to £222.2m (2014/15: £152.4m), largely by positive
movement in net pension liability and retained profit for the period

Society Highlights


Continued commitment across the Society to drive great service to our members and
customers, operational excellence and corporate responsibility initiatives



Investors in People (IIP) accreditation achieved for the whole Society



Further improvement in the Society's Corporate Responsibility CR index score to 2½ stars



Achievement of all four Carbon Trust Standards (covering the carbon, water, waste and
supply chain standards) – a first in the retail sector and only the fourth organisation
worldwide to achieve this standard.



National recognition by winning IGD's Employability Award for the Society’s SENse to
Aspire programme with Selly Oak Trust School in Birmingham.



Further improvements in the Society's customer satisfaction score and employee
engagement index



Implementation of improved levels of pay and benefits for over 6,000 front line store
colleagues



Significant change improvement programmes across the business to ensure the Society
has the flexibility to adapt to an ever-changing and competitive trading environment



The introduction of new, competitive lower prices across our fresh fruit and vegetable
ranges as part of the weekly 'fresh three' initiative



Continued focus on strengthening the Board's governance processes and arrangements



Over £1 million raised for Newlife Foundation for Disabled Children, the Society's colleague
elected corporate charity, since the partnership began in 2012
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Business Activities
The Society’s principal business activities are food stores, petrol filling stations, funeral services
and property investment. In addition, the Society has trading interests in travel shops, coffin
manufacture and optical services.
The Society continues to hold a minority interest in Thomas Cook Co-operative Travel Limited.

About us
Who we are
Central England Co-operative is one of the largest independent co-operative societies in the
UK. We are a modern, forward-looking business employing over 8,700 people. Our principal
business activities are food stores, petrol filling stations, funeral services and property
investment. In addition, the Society has trading interests in travel shops, coffin manufacture
and optical services.
We operate more than 430 trading outlets across 16 counties: West Midlands, Warwickshire,
Worcestershire, Staffordshire, Derbyshire, Leicestershire, Rutland, Nottinghamshire,
Northamptonshire, Lincolnshire, West Yorkshire, South Yorkshire, Suffolk, Norfolk,
Bedfordshire and Cambridgeshire.
We are proud of our heritage as a successful, member owned, member controlled co-operative
business. Our members and the local communities we serve are at the heart of our business.
We are committed to putting co-operative values and principles into everything we do. Through
our Corporate Responsibility strategy we continually seek opportunities to improve the
environment and contribute to the well-being and sustainability of the communities in which we
operate. The Society supports a number of charities, including Newlife Foundation for Disabled
Children and we invest 1% of our trading profit into supporting local good causes across
Central England.

What makes us different
A co-operative is a group of people acting together to meet the common needs of its members,
sharing ownership and making decisions democratically. We take a long term approach to
doing business and believe that we can maximise our performance and create value for our
members by behaving differently from our competitors.
Our members shape our business – our democratic process gives every member the
opportunity to have a say in how the Society is run.
We share our profits – as a co-operative our profits are shared with our members, our
colleagues and the local communities we serve.
We operate independently – we are proud to be one of the UK’s largest independent cooperatives, which means that we can set our own agenda whilst also being a key voice in the
co-operative sector as a whole.
At the heart of the local community – we operate over 430 trading outlets across 16 counties
in Central England. Over the last five years we have invested £175 million in growing our
business and have supported hundreds of local good causes through the Society’s Community
Dividend scheme.
We seek to support others – working co-operatively with partners and local good causes is a
key part of what we do and a number of our partnership projects are industry leading, national
awards winners.
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Our Vision
Our vision is to be the UK’s best consumer co-operative society by making a real difference to
our members and our communities.

Our Values
Our values underpin our vision, and guide all of our actions.
Co-operation –our co-operative principles are at the heart of our actions
Improvement – always getting better at what we do
Recognition – rewarding the efforts and achievements of our colleagues
Customers – we listen to our customers to constantly provide great service
Honesty – openness and honesty as a way of working
Success – driving commercial success through effective leadership and teamwork

What we do
Food
235 Food Stores
We continuously invest in and improve our estate to provide modern, energy efficient
convenience stores with a wide range of products and services to meet the needs of our
members and customers.
25 Petrol Filling Stations
Our petrol filling stations are a key part of our food store estate. We have introduced The
Co-operative brand at all of our filling stations and members can earn membership points every
time they fill up.
Food Distribution
Our Food Distribution Centres based in Leicester distribute over 25 million cases annually to
the Society’s food stores as well as those of two other neighbouring co-operative societies,
providing consistent and reliable product availability for our customers and members. In 2015,
our distribution vehicles covered 2.9 million miles, making around 103,000 store deliveries.

Funeral
120 Funeral homes
We are a leading provider of quality funeral services, conducting over 15,000 funerals in 2015.
Our Funeral business also includes a crematorium in Bretby, located on the outskirts of Burtonon-Trent.
10 Florist Shops
Our team of florists provide services for all occasions and support the work of our funeral
homes across the Society trading area.
5 Masonry Showrooms
Working alongside our funeral teams and other support services, our masonry outlets help to
ensure that families are supported through every step of their journey.
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Coffin Manufacture
The Society’s coffin manufacturing business meets the needs of our funeral homes as well as
supplying a number of other funeral businesses.

Travel
21 Travel Shops
Our travel shop network is operated on a managed service basis through the Freedom Travel
buying group. This is in addition to our continued investment in the joint venture formed in 2011
which brought together all parts of the Society’s travel business with those of The Co-operative
Group and Thomas Cook’s UK retail shop network.

Other Businesses
The Society’s portfolio of businesses includes three optical sites based in Hunstanton,
Peterborough and St Neots which are recognised for providing high quality, specialist optical
services and advice. We also operate a department store in Scunthorpe.
During the year the Society disposed of its multi-franchise motor dealership operation in Lincoln
and closed the specialist vehicle construction business, Leicester Carriage Builders.

Property Investment
Our investment property portfolio represents an important part of the Society’s asset base, as
well as generating significant annual rental income.
Our property development activity supports our ambitious growth strategy by identifying new
trading outlets and business acquisitions across the Society’s trading area.

____________________________________________________________________________

Transition to Financial Reporting Standard 102
The Society’s financial statements for the period have been prepared in accordance with
Financial Reporting Standard 102 (‘FRS 102’). The Society’s financial statements for the prior
year ended 24 January 2015 were prepared under previous UK Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (GAAP), with the date of transition to FRS 102 being 25 January 2014. As a
consequence of adopting FRS 102, a number of accounting policies have changed to comply
with the new standard and comparative prior year amounts have been restated where
appropriate. The details of these changes and related prior year restatements are detailed in
note 26 in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

____________________________________________________________________________
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Directors’ Report
To the Members
The Board of Directors is pleased to present its report for the year ended 23 January 2016.
President’s Overview
The Society achieved a very encouraging and solid performance in 2015 against a backdrop of
highly competitive market conditions, food price deflation and on-going structural changes in
the UK grocery sector. In an increasingly challenging trading environment, the Society’s clear
strategy continues to lay the foundations for the future and further enhance Central England
Co-operative’s profile as a modern, successful co-operative business.
The Board is particularly pleased that the Society’s solid financial performance has been
matched with excellent progress in other areas including awards for our credentials and
achievements as a responsible co-operative business. The awards for our major achievements
in environmental matters, developing our people and support to the community are particularly
pleasing – for which the Society as a whole, our members and our colleagues should be
justifiably proud.
Our strategy remains focussed on optimising the Society’s point of difference as a strong
independent, member owned, member controlled co-operative business. Strengthening links
with members and local communities is at the heart of our strategy and is supported by the
work of the Society’s Membership & Community Councils which continue to develop and gain
momentum following their formation in 2014. Further focus in this area will continue in 2016,
supported by the implementation of a revised Membership & Community structure which aims
to maximise the reach, engagement and communication with members and local communities
across our trading area.
The Board remains alert to the importance of ensuring the Society has clear and effective
governance arrangements in place to oversee the Society’s affairs and promote the long term
success of the business. In recognition of the Board’s pivotal role, during the year we
embarked on a programme working jointly with the management executive, to further
strengthen the Society’s governance arrangements. This exercise has resulted in new ways of
working and a newly defined rationale statement which clearly sets out the Board’s function and
purpose. We have also developed and implemented a Director performance appraisal process
as part of the drive to further improve Board effectiveness. In addition, and as part of this
process, the Board has implemented new appraisal arrangements for the annual performance
reviews of the Chief Executive and Society Secretary.
The support of good causes, local groups and events across our trading area has been
enhanced with the launch of ‘my co-op community’ website, which has provided greater reach
and visibility of the Society’s Community Dividend award scheme. We will continue to monitor
and review this important element of our strategy with the aim of strengthening the Society’s
profile, enhancing relationships and making a real difference to the local communities in which
we operate.
The ongoing success and progress of Central England Co-operative could not be achieved
without the tremendous efforts of our colleagues in providing consistently high standards and
service to our members and customers. On behalf of the Board of Directors, I thank all of our
colleagues for their continued commitment and important contribution to the Society.
We look forward to presenting our Annual Report to the Society’s members at our Annual
Meetings in April.

Maria Lee
Society President
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Obituary – Dave Roberts
Dave Roberts, the Society’s former President, sadly passed away in May 2015.
Dave was first appointed as a Director of the former Derby & Burton Society in 1981 and
became President of the then enlarged East Midlands Society in 1984 remaining as a Director
over the next 27 years through mergers to become Central Midlands and Midlands Societies
before retiring under the age rule in 2011.
During his 30 years as a Director Dave served on a range of area and sub-committees and was
a trustee of the Society’s Pension Scheme. Dave was well known for his forthright views and
political nous, but most of all for his fierce loyalty to the Society and the wider co-operative
movement. He was on the national executive of his Trade Union and served for a number of
years as Deputy Leader of Derby City Council. He leaves a widow, Myrlen, three daughters
and a son and their families.
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Chief Executive’s Review
Trading and Financial Performance
The retail trading environment remains challenging and highly competitive with food and fuel
price deflation a key feature. Against this backdrop, total Society gross sales (excluding VAT)
of £844.7m were 3.0% lower than the prior year (2014/15: £870.6m) and largely mirrored the
market conditions. Total Society sales were however marginally ahead of the prior year after
excluding the closed Transport businesses and the impact of the decline in petrol and diesel
pump prices in the year.
Increased sales in our convenience stores and a good performance in our funeral business
were offset by the combined impacts of food and fuel price deflation and continued pressure in
our large stores and supermarkets. Our convenience stores and funeral business represent
future growth opportunities and continue to contribute to the Society’s resilience in the current
trading environment.
Trading profit of £20.8m was ahead of expectations and only marginally lower than the prior
year (2014/15: £21.4m). Operating Profit of £19.8m (2014/15: £18.9m) increased by 5.2%
whilst Profit before Tax of £8.8m was £3.4m ahead of the prior year (2014/15: £5.4m) and
included a dividend of £4.8m relating to the Society’s investment in Thomas Cook Co-operative
Travel Limited.
Our performance in 2015 reflects the benefit of effective cost control in response to the intense
pressure on sales and margins, together with planned efficiencies following the closure of the
former Anglia Society’s Peterborough head office in September 2014.
The continuation of our growth strategy has seen capital investment of £29.5m including the
opening of 10 new food stores, 4 new funeral homes and significant refurbishment activity
across the business. Our new concept supermarket format has been introduced at a further 25
stores and incorporated at a number of smaller store refits. In line with the Society’s Corporate
Responsibility (‘CR’) strategy and as part of the drive to reduce energy consumption, we have
continued investment in full glass doors on refrigeration equipment across the food store estate.
The importance of offering quality and value has included the introduction of new, competitive
lower prices across our fresh fruit and vegetable ranges as part of the weekly ‘fresh three’
initiative. The new lower prices have been well received by our members and customers and
further supported by tailored coupons and offers at the till point to drive member engagement.
We have also introduced e-Dividend to all Society members. This initiative operated
successfully in the former Anglia business and enables dividend to be uploaded to membership
cards for redemption at the point of sale. The proposed dividend for purchases made during
the second half of 2015 will be loaded onto members’ cards in this way.
Our funeral business had a very busy start to the year whilst maintaining its reputation for
outstanding client care. We are proud of the Society’s long established and strong position in
this market although recognise the need to react to and anticipate changes in how people wish
to celebrate the life of loved ones and mark their passing. We completed a comprehensive
review of our funeral strategy during the year which focussed on building upon our good
reputation and ensuring we are the most professional and accessible provider of choice. By
offering the best care and choice for our families, we aim to enhance memories and love at the
most difficult of times. Our funeral team has commenced a programme to implement the new
strategy, with encouraging early results.
The Society’s 21 travel shops performed well during the year despite difficult market conditions
following world events. Travel sales within specialist niche sectors such as long haul, tailor
made, escorted tour and cruise have continued to grow and remain a strong market for the
future.
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Elsewhere, we have made good progress on the realignment of the Society’s investment
property estate, with a number of planned disposals completed during the year. In line with the
Board’s strategy to reshape the trading portfolio we also completed the disposal of the Society’s
motor dealership business in Lincoln and the closure of our specialist vehicle construction
operation business, Leicester Carriage Builders. The related costs arising from these changes
in the Society’s trading portfolio, together with other business reorganisation costs, are included
within Exceptional Costs in the Group Income Statement.
The Society’s capital expenditure programme continues to be supported by strong underlying
cash generation from operating activities, backed by the strength of the asset base and
carefully managed funding arrangements. This prudent and planned approach is reflected in a
reduction in the Society’s net debt position at the year-end of £8.1m from £15.8m at the prior
year.
The Society’s net assets of £222.2m show a significant increase of £69.8m compared to the
position at January 2015, with the movement largely reflecting a decrease in the net pension
liability in accordance with the accounting requirements of FRS 102. The favourable movement
reflected an increase in the discount rate used to place a value on the pension scheme’s
liabilities. Despite this favourable movement, the Society remains fully aware of the
significance and volatility of the value of the pension liability on an accounting basis as distinct
from the funding position of the scheme. In this context, the Society remains confident in the
long term strategy to address the pension scheme deficit on an affordable, fair and carefully
controlled basis.
Customer focus remains a key part of our strategy and is being supported by a number of
change improvement programmes across the business. A key driver of these initiatives is to
ensure the Society’s support infrastructure is best equipped to meet the needs of the business
and has the flexibility to adapt to an ever-changing and competitive trading environment.
The provision of great customer service, quality and value in our food stores remain critical
factors to retain and attract customers. This important area represents a key measurement for
the business and we were pleased to achieve further improvement in our independently
assessed customer satisfaction score in the second half of 2015 of 7.9 (out of 10), up from 7.8
achieved in the first half of the year.
A key driver of the Society’s growth and success is the contribution of our colleagues in
providing consistently high standards and service to our members and customers. The
importance of our colleagues feeling a sense of belonging and commitment to the business is
measured through colleague engagement.
The Society has consistently placed great emphasis on this measure and it is encouraging that
the annual ‘Have Your Say’ colleague attitude survey recorded an improved employee
engagement score in 2015.
The Society is committed to providing fair and competitive levels of pay and benefits and in
April, we announced an 8.5% pay award over two years to more than 6,000 front line store
colleagues. This pay award forms part of our Fair Reward initiative which recognises the
important role our front line colleagues play in delivering award-winning customer service to our
members and customers.
The encouraging trading performance in 2015 has again demonstrated the Society’s resilience
as a strong and successful independent co-operative business to compete in the most
demanding conditions, and underlines the Board’s confidence in the strategy that continues to
provide the framework for future growth.
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Other Progress
Our commitment to investing in and developing our people has been demonstrated by
achieving IIP (Investors in People) accreditation for the whole business. This is an important
achievement for the Society, and reflects our significant investment in developing leadership
skills and encouraging talent, together with continued focus on the provision of effective training
and development, induction arrangements and colleague communication.
In April 2015 we were pleased to receive a further improvement in our Corporate Responsibility
(CR) index score and star rating. The Society’s score moved forward by 7 points to 87,
resulting in our star rating increasing to 2½ stars in 2015 from 2 stars in 2014. This important
achievement reflects the hard work of our colleagues across the Society and demonstrates how
we continue to embed CR within the business as the bedrock of the Society’s vision and
strategy. The business is committed to further improvements in this area in line with our CR
strategy.
In June 2015, we were proud to be named a finalist in Business in the Community’s 2015
Responsible Business Awards in the ‘Inspiring Young Talent’ category for the Society’s ‘SENse
to Aspire’ programme. This initiative aims to provide students with Special Educational Needs
(SEN) at Selly Oak Trust School in Birmingham with improved opportunities for finding
employment. We received further recognition for our SENse to Aspire programme, with the
Society winning the ‘Employability Award’ at IGD’s Annual Awards ceremony in London.
In December 2015, we were extremely proud to be awarded the Carbon Trust’s internationally
recognised environmental certifications for reducing organisational water use and waste
outputs. The Society is only the fourth organisation worldwide – and the first in the retail sector
– to achieve all four Carbon Trust Standards (covering the carbon, water, waste and supply
chain standards).
As part of our Corporate Responsibility strategy, we launched a colleague volunteering scheme
to enable all employees to participate in up to three volunteering days per year. The scheme
will support activities and good causes across the Society’s trading area whilst providing
colleagues with opportunities for their own personal development. Further work to develop the
scheme will continue in 2016.
As reported in our Interim Report, we have continued to support WRAP’s (Waste & Reduction
Action Programme) ‘Love Food Hate Waste’ campaign as part of the drive to reduce food and
drink waste.
Finally, we are really pleased to have reached our £1m fund raising target for the Society’s
colleague elected corporate charity, Newlife Foundation for Disabled Children. Throughout the
year we have again seen numerous fundraising activities across the Society, providing much
needed funds for essential equipment and support to disabled and terminally ill children across
our trading area. We are hugely proud and grateful for the ongoing enthusiasm, participation
and generosity of the Society’s colleagues, members and customers in supporting this most
worthwhile charity.
Outlook
We expect the trading environment to remain challenging and highly competitive for the
foreseeable future, with the impacts of food price deflation and external cost pressures being
key factors.
The Society’s strategy continues to provide the framework to respond to the challenges ahead
and support future growth through investment in the business, our colleagues and ensuring we
provide a relevant and attractive proposition to our members and customers.
Martyn Cheatle
Chief Executive
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Business Performance
Food
£698.9 million Gross Sales (excluding VAT)
10 new Food Stores
7,647 Colleagues
The retail food sector remains under pressure and significant change, with the industry
continuing to experience a perfect storm of changing customer shopping habits, food price
deflation, intense competition from new entrants and the growth in on-line channels. Whilst
consumer confidence and real wages have been slowly improving, household budgets remain
tightly managed. The shift in customer spending behaviour to shopping little and often
continues to generate growth in the convenience sector, leaving the Society well placed to build
on its strong position in this key part of the market.
In the context of the rapidly changing market conditions and deflationary environment, it is
encouraging to report that Society food store sales of £603.8 million (excluding VAT) were
broadly in line with the prior year (2014/15: £604.0 million). The impact of falling petrol and
diesel prices was reflected in total fuel sales declining to £95.1 million (2014/5: £110.5 million).
Continued growth in convenience stores, new store openings and increased food and fuel
forecourt sales were offset by the impact of increasingly challenging conditions in the Society’s
larger food stores.
During the year the Society has optimised its approach to pricing in order to remain competitive
in the deflationary food environment. We have worked with our suppliers through Federal
Retail and Trading Services, the Society’s collective buying services provider, to achieve cost
price savings where possible. In this way we have been largely successful in protecting our
margin rate whilst maintaining an attractive range, product quality and a competitive retail offer
to our members and customers.
The Society’s ambitious development programme saw the opening of 10 new food stores
during the year, with the business now operating over 260 food stores across Central England.
Early trading performance at the new stores has been very positive, giving confidence for
further openings planned for the coming year. Elsewhere, investment in the existing estate
continues to generate encouraging sales growth, with 8 major store refurbishments and 75
smaller trading projects completed during the year.
In line with the Society’s food strategy, we have continued to review performance of the whole
food store estate in order to assess the strategic fit and long term sales and profitability at each
location. As a result of this review, a small number of loss making stores were closed during
the year although in some cases, the closures related to planned investment in store
relocations which provide a much improved shopping experience, retail offer and service to our
members and customers.
As part of the food store refurbishment programme, the further roll-out of the Society’s new
concept supermarket format at 25 stores has been well received by members and customers.
The new, modern store format has created a bright look and feel incorporating new product
ranges in ‘food-to-go’, fresh fish, produce, bakery and beers, wines and spirits categories. The
new category designs have also been incorporated at a number of smaller store refits.
During the year we have continued to review and implement a new operating model and
revised team structures for our food stores to drive efficiencies and ensure the Society has an
appropriate cost base to provide great service to our members and customers.
The roll-out of the improved co-operative own-brand range in fresh categories, including
produce, and frozen foods continues to be complemented by the addition of ‘Free From’ and
speciality ranges in all of our food stores.
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Over the course of 2015 we have established a new Customer Experience and Insight team
encompassing both Marketplace and Customer Insight. In retail, we have asked over 13,000
customers about their shopping experience, and continued to grow our customer satisfaction
score from previous results to a 7.9 at the end of 2015, up from 7.8 in the first half of the year.
This information has informed both our strategic and tactical activities.
The Society continues to issue tailored coupons to members at the till point, increasing member
economic engagement and providing rewards for shopping with Central England Co-operative.
In addition, the Society has run ‘Basket Builder’ campaigns to reward members for regular
weekly spending over key trading periods during the year.
We have attracted new members through a successful year of ‘Engage’ campaigns which have
recruited new customers and members to our store using direct marketing. To build on this
success we have launched the ‘Join In’ card in 2015 which has more flexible delivery options
and provides the technology to enable instant membership which is currently in trial in retail
stores.
The last 12 months has seen a continuation in the Society’s shift towards digital marketing and
online PR. A new format member e-mail design, largely covering food and membership
matters, has been introduced to strengthen communication and engagement, generating
positive open and click through rates. In conjunction with e-mail communication, we introduced
the Society’s e-Dividend to all Society members, loading dividends directly onto members’
cards.
Our use of social media to deliver relevant content to our members and customers is building
momentum. During the Christmas period, the introduction of an interactive advent calendar on
the Society’s website supported a wider integrated marketing and PR campaign that increased
visitor traffic. We have seen significant year-on-year growth in website visitor numbers, with
further improvements to the website planned for the coming year.
Our community focus remains a key driver for the Society and one that is embedded across all
of our trading activities. We are committed to supporting local community groups and engaging
collaboratively with local partners. Raising awareness of our community activity has improved
with the use of Twitter, Facebook and our ‘My Co-op Community’ website.
The year ahead will see the Society build on its digital success. Customer segmentation and
personalisation will play an important role in our future plans as we look to use more rich media,
including both video and animation, together with mobile marketing to reach a wider audience
and drive member engagement and participation.

Wholesale
£46.6 million Gross Sales (excluding VAT)
The efficient operation of the Society’s Food Distribution Centres remains an integral part of the
overall Retail Food strategy, ensuring the smooth and continuous supply of products to our food
stores and those of Tamworth and Heart of England Societies. Recent investment in the
Society’s distribution capability has seen continued productivity improvements as a result of the
new warehouse management system at the ambient and chilled distribution centres in
Leicester.
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Funeral
£38.2 million Gross Sales (excluding VAT)
4 New Funeral Homes
851 Colleagues
Our funeral business achieved a very encouraging year in 2015, with growth in funeral
arrangement numbers reflecting an unusual increase in the death rate at the early part of the
year. During the year the Society conducted 15,830 funerals, an increase of 4.4% against the
prior year. The growth in funeral volumes was reflected in sales rising to £38.2m (2014/15:
£37.4m). The increase in the death rate was driven by a higher incidence of the influenza virus
as a result of the vaccine being less effective than in previous years. The death rates for the
latter part of the year returned to expected levels and broadly level with the prior year. The
market remains competitive across the Society’s trading area.
Against this backdrop, the Society remains focussed on providing the highest standards of care
and service to families at their time of need through our estate of funeral homes, florist shops
and masonry showrooms. This is supported by the coffin manufacturing business and the
Society’s crematorium.
Building for the future saw the opening of new funeral homes in Boldmere and Harborne in
Birmingham, Borrowash in Derbyshire and Kings Lynn in Norfolk. Investment in the existing
estate included the major refurbishment of four funeral homes during the year, 22 smaller refit
projects and 12 rebrands.
The Society’s funeral strategy is focussed on building upon our good reputation and ensuring
we are the most professional and accessible provider of choice. By offering the best care and
choice for our families, we aim to enhance memories and love at the most difficult of times.
Continuing to improve our operating platform will generate significant efficiencies whilst
supporting our ambitions to improve our client’s experience. In addition, we have engaged with
the Institute of Customer Service to provide service industry benchmarking and assist in us
mapping and improving the client journey.
Our plans in funeral to further build membership and create a stronger presence in our
communities will support our ambition to further increase our market share.

Specialist Businesses
Within Specialist Businesses the Society’s 21 Travel Shops performed well considering the
difficult market conditions experienced following world events, which impacted two major tourist
destinations and hit consumer confidence in forward bookings. Despite these external factors,
gross sales of £36.3m were broadly in line with the prior year (2014/15: £36.9m). Sales within
specialist niche sectors such as long haul, tailor made, escorted tour and cruise have continued
to grow and remain a strong market for the future.
The Society’s three Optical sites had a strong year with encouraging sales increases, and have
continued to perform well in a very competitive market by offering high quality dispensing
services.
In July 2015, the Society completed the disposal of our multi-franchise motor dealership
business in Lincoln in line with the Board’s strategy to reshape the trading portfolio. In January
2016, and following an in-depth strategic review, the Society closed its specialist vehicle
construction business, Leicester Carriage Builders. The Board reached this difficult decision
after careful assessment of the various financial and commercial factors involved, including
recent customer consolidation and the impact of on-going public spending cuts in the specialist
vehicle construction sector.
The Board places on record its appreciation to those employed at Leicester Carriage Builders
for their dedication and service over many years.
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Property Investment
Rental income from the Society’s investment portfolio of £9.8m was only marginally lower than
the prior year (2014/15: £10.0m) and partly reflected the on-going strategy to rebalance the
estate.
The general property market continues to improve although secondary and tertiary sites, which
are generally more relevant to the Society’s investment property portfolio, remain challenging.
In this context, the Society’s property team made good progress in 2015, achieving a significant
number of targeted property disposals in relation to assets which do not meet minimum criteria
and the acquisition of one new investment property during the period, together with proactive
asset management of underperforming assets, as part of the on-going strategy to rebalance
and strengthen the quality of the portfolio.
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Corporate Responsibility




2½ stars in the BITC annual CR index
First retailer to be accredited and internationally recognised with all four Carbon
Trust Standards
Winners of the 2015 IGD Employability Award for Journey to a Job and SENse to
Aspire and

Our Approach
The Society’s approach to Corporate Responsibility (‘CR’) encourages behaviours that ensure
our interactions are socially and environmentally beneficial, while remaining committed to
co-operative values and principles.
Our CR principles provide a foundation for the Society’s strategic framework in support of our
vision: “To be the UK’s best consumer co-operative society by making a real difference to our
members and out communities.” We continually seek out opportunities to enrich the wellbeing
and sustainability of the communities in which we operate and to contribute to environmental
improvement.
Following the launch of our ‘Making a Difference Today for a Better Tomorrow’ plan in 2014
which sets out our CR objectives under four key pillars of Community, Environment,
Marketplace and Workplace, during 015 we worked effectively to start delivering on our plans.
We have set Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) until 2018 and continue to make robust and
sustainable progress which is evidenced by our steadily increasing BITC CR Index score.
Our CR workgroup framework continued to facilitate progress in this area under the guidance of
the Steering Group and with the support of the Management Executive and oversight of the
Board.

Corporate Responsibility: 2015 Highlights
Workplace – engage and develop our employees while rewarding their efforts and
achievements justly and fairly
Building on the success of the Society’s ‘Walking Works’ initiative we have spent time
developing ‘Bloom – A Recipe for Healthy Living’ which will run for the benefit of our
colleagues, customers and members during 2016.
It will be operated through multiple
channels for the benefit of a diverse audience and takes into account our learnings from 2015.
Environment – reduce our negative and increase our positive impact on the environment
In December 2015, Central England Co-operative was proud to be awarded the Carbon Trust’s
internationally recognised environmental certifications for reducing organisational water use
and waste outputs. The Society is only the fourth organisation worldwide – and the first in the
retail sector – to achieve all four Carbon Trust Standards (covering the carbon, water, waste
and supply chain standards).
We are in the process of implementing an Environmental Management System in partnership
with the Carbon Trust. This will ensure that we are ready to manage any incident that may
occur in any part of our estate that may have environmental impact, by deciding on and sharing
best practice.
Marketplace – operate a responsible supply chain and develop ethical trade
As part of the Carbon Trust’s Supply Chain Standard process we have identified and assessed
a group of 100 suppliers who we intend to work with over the next 12 months in order to
improve their sustainability credentials. This recognises the Society’s commitment to taking
responsibility both on our own account and on behalf of our suppliers.

Page 15 of 88

We have seen good year-on-year growth in sales of regionally sourced products and remain
committed to improving our range with aim of reducing environmental impact and increasing
community benefit.
The Society remains a proud supporter of WRAP’s (Waste & Resources Action Programme)
‘Love Food Hate Waste’ campaign which aims to increase awareness in order to reduce food
and drink waste.

Community – work with our communities to help them to improve their sustainability and
wellbeing
SENse to Aspire was nationally recognised in October by winning the 2015 IGD Employability
Award, having been shortlisted as a finalist for the Jaguar Land Rover Inspiring Young Talent
Award at the BiTC Responsible Business Awards earlier in the year. The SENse to Aspire
programme aims to provide students who have special educational needs with a better chance
of getting a job.
The programme has been developed to now include an extended work experience opportunity
for selected students. In addition, planning is in progress to undertake supported internships
(starting in September 2016) and we are currently recruiting new schools into the programme
as a result of the successes which achieved in 2015.
We continue to make a real difference in our communities through our partnerships,
volunteering and financial support. Our Member and Community Relations Officers work to
deliver our CR agenda into local schools and community groups through a variety of
approaches including Ethical Challenges, Healthy Choices Workshops and Journey to a Job.
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Membership & Community




102 Community Dividend Grants awarded
Revised structure agreed for the Society’s Membership & Community Councils
£1m fundraising milestone reached for Newlife Foundation for Disabled Children

Our Plan
The Society’s Membership & Community Strategy continues to focus on growing our
membership, increasing engagement with members and developing stronger community links.
There are a number of channels by which our members and our communities are supported
including:






Membership & Community Councils
The Community Dividend Scheme
Corporate Responsibility
Donations and support for local organisations and charities
The Society’s colleague elected corporate charity

Our Membership & Community Councils (MCCs) are responsible for activity to support the
strategic direction of member and community engagement. The MCCs have been established
to work with the Society’s business operations locally in line with Membership & Community
Strategy. Responsibilities include providing membership activities that promote education,
culture and recreation, supporting member and community engagement and focussing on four
specific CR themes of local food poverty, health & wellbeing, local environment and youth
employment.
Achievements
Throughout 2015 our Membership and Community Council members have continued to meet
and communicate on a regular basis to agree activities and support for members and local
communities across the Society’s trading area.
Support has been agreed for a wide range of member groups, classes, activities and
community partnerships. Details of activities can be found at www.members.coop or for more
information members can email member.community@centralengland.coop
In the last twelve months MCCs have identified a number of community opportunities and
supported a wide range of activities in line with our key themes including: healthy choices
workshops, foodbanks, Fairtrade and Co-operative Fortnight along with supporting the
Society’s new food store and funeral home openings.
During 2015 with support from the MCCs our Member & Community Relations team has
delivered healthy choices workshops to over 900 school students. They also supported
colleague volunteering events across the region in making a real difference to community
organisations.
Our SENse to Aspire programme continues to support students with Special Education Needs
(SEN) with classroom based workshops and in store retail work experience, with 80 students
taking up the opportunity to attend one or more of these events. In October 2015 the Society
was proud to be recognised by the Institute of Grocery Distribution by winning their
Employability Award. We will continue to grow this scheme to further support SEN students.
We will also continue to support young people with our Journey to a Job programme which
provides young unemployed people the opportunity to have job skills training along with CV and
interview sessions.
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Central England’s Co-operative’s Community Dividend scheme has gone from strength to
strength in 2015 following the launch in the previous year of the ‘My Co-op Community’ section
on the Society’s website. We held a series of ‘My Co-op’ community pop up events in stores
resulting in a two thirds increase in grants awarded to 102 applications from 61 in the previous
year.
During the year we were proud to reach the £1 million fundraising milestone for Newlife
Foundation for Disabled Children, with the funds raised continuing to make a significant
difference to disabled and terminally ill children and their families across our trading area.

What’s Next
In January 2016, the Board approved a revised framework for the Society’s Membership &
Community Councils. The new structure will create six MCCs with the primary aim of
maximising the reach, engagement and communication with members and local communities
across our trading area. The new MCC structure will be implemented in May 2016.
The Society has formed a Joint Working Group consisting of members from the Board
Directors, Membership & Community Councils and Management to review, develop and
oversee all aspects of the Society’s Membership & Community strategy. The Joint Working
Group will focus on optimising the Society’s point of difference as a successful, member owned,
community based co-operative business.
As part of the strategy of growing our membership base, we will continue to make joining the
Society easier with a new improved ‘Join In’ membership card. The new card enables new
members to instantly receive all the benefits of membership including: share of the profits,
access to and involvement in membership & community activities and events and the
opportunity to have a say at our members’ meetings.
We will continue to effectively promote Members’ events during 2016 in forthcoming editions of
the Members’ Magazine, in-store and online at www.members.coop.
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Our Colleagues
Our colleagues are fundamental to the Society's future success – ensuring our colleagues
continue to deliver high standards of care and service to our members and customers every
day remains our focus.
Working for Central England Co-operative is unique; our colleagues are also members of the
Society and their advocacy for who we are and what we do is what makes us
different. Ensuring we continually give our colleagues reasons to be proud and engaged in
what makes us different is our upmost priority. To support this key aim, we held a management
conference in November 2015 to give managers from across the business the opportunity to
reflect together on what we have achieved so far and reconnect with why they are personally
proud to work for the Society. The conference was a huge success and resulted in over 500
colleagues committing to delivering even more for their teams and their local communities. We
have further invested in supporting our colleagues in being proud of the Society by launching
an online learning module 'Passion for the Brand.'
All of our 8,700 colleagues are engaged in the Society’s priorities and through our ongoing
coaching and learning and development programmes, they continue to be confident to be their
best in delivering brilliant care and service to our members and customers. The hard work and
commitment of our colleagues was once again rewarded with the 'Share of the Profits'
colleague dividend, with over £800,000 distributed in June 2015.
Diversity
Diversity continues to be important to the Society and colleagues from all walks of life work with
us – each one being an individual who brings their unique skills, personality and passion to their
role in the business. What we all have in common is our commitment to what we stand for,
what we want to achieve and above all, to provide great service to our members and
customers.
We continue to focus on attracting people from our local communities to work for the Society,
which builds on the successful introduction of our online recruitment system and careers
website launched in the previous year. We have reviewed all of our recruitment practices to
ensure the Society is well placed to create a diverse workforce. We believe a diverse
workforce is fundamental to fostering new ways of thinking, and enables the Society to reach
out to a wider range of customers and will support us in growing our business. This
commitment has seen an improvement in the range of applicants we are attracting and we will
continue focus in this area as a key priority. We have also launched an online learning module
for colleagues to advocate and understand more about the importance of equality and diversity
to our Society.
Creating a great place to work
We are committed to ensuring Central England Co-operative is a great place to work, where
colleagues can flourish, develop their careers and enjoy their time with us. We ensure our
colleagues have an opportunity to tell us how it feels to work for us, and for them to share their
ideas on how we could make things even better.
Once again we gave our colleagues the opportunity to share their feedback via the Society's
annual online 'Have Your Say' attitude survey and we were pleased to achieve an improvement
in our engagement index score to 77 (2014: 76). This increase demonstrates our ability to
motivate our colleagues, despite the challenges faced by the business and the changes we
have made to ensure the Society is best prepared and equipped for the future.
All business areas are holding listening sessions with their teams to further explore what else
we could be doing to make Central England Co-operative an even greater place to work.
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External recognition
In July 2015, and after undergoing a rigorous assessment process, we were delighted to
achieve the internationally recognised accreditation; Investors in People (IIP) for the whole
Society. Achieving this standard supports our view that we lead and support our colleagues in a
way that will enable the Society to achieve sustainable results in the future. Achieving this
standard of people management is something the Society is very proud of and we will continue
to build on this assessment through our ongoing commitment to invest in and develop our
colleagues.
We were also delighted to win a prestigious award from the IGD (Institute of Grocery
Distribution). We won the ‘Employability Award’, for the Society’s ‘Journey to a Job’ workplace
experience programme. The judges at the IGD awards ceremony commented that our 'Journey
to the job programme was fundamentally different and a refreshing approach to
employability.’ Our scheme supported 84 young people in learning how to find, get and keep a
job. We have further supported youth employment through our apprenticeship programme and
we are delighted to have now supported 1,060 people.
We were also shortlisted for the 'Training Journal, Best Commercial Programme' award for the
implementation of our learning management system, 'one learning.' Our online learning
offering has gone from strength to strength with an additional 30 modules being developed to
support our colleagues in their roles. In 2015, over 43,000 modules to refresh knowledge were
completed by our colleagues.
Leadership and Learning
Ensuring we have colleagues with the right skills and behaviours is paramount to the Society’s
future success and to support this key aim, we have continued to focus heavily on developing
our people. This has included the development of a new behaviours framework which has
been shared with all colleagues and has been embedded in our performance management
approach. The behaviours framework further embeds our Future, Engage, Deliver (‘FED’)
leadership approach, and strengthens the focus on individual accountability, data driven
decision making and further supports collaborative ways of working.
During 2015, we held and arranged over 800 learning events, attended by over 4,700
participants with total learning time exceeding 55,000 hours.
We have further developed our ‘Leading the way’ manager programme and in 2015 over 40
high performing colleagues participated in the scheme. We launched a new ‘Leading the way’
– colleague programme, with over 80 colleagues taking part. We continue to increase our
focus on managing talent and supporting our colleagues in developing their career with the
Society. We are investing in developing our skills in workforce planning in order that we can
ensure we will have the right skills, in the right place at the right time to enable the Society to
continue to be successful in an increasingly challenging trading environment.
Pensions
Following approval by the Board in November 2015, the Society commenced a 60 day
consultation period with Society colleagues and trade unions to introduce new pension
arrangements in March 2016. The Society’s new defined contribution ‘Central Plan’ provides
pension provision based on a colleague contribution rate of 5% and employer contribution of
3%, together with the provision of death in service benefit.
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Remuneration Report
Introduction
The Remuneration Committee is pleased to present its report to Members for the year ended
23 January 2016. The Committee’s primary role is:


To determine policy on remuneration and other main terms and conditions of employment in
respect of the Management Executive, including the Chief Executive.



Review remuneration using comparisons against the agreed market benchmarks for the
Executive roles.



Approve any relevant incentive schemes and ensure that they support the Society strategy,
values and objectives and authorise payments under any incentive schemes in line with
their rules.

This report has been reviewed by the Society’s Remuneration Committee and will be put to an
advisory vote at the forthcoming Annual General Meetings held during April 2016. Exact dates
and locations can be found on page 87 of the Annual Report.
The Remuneration Committee
Composition
The Remuneration Committee is a sub-committee of the Board and comprises the President
and two Directors. Directors who are also colleagues employed by the Society cannot serve on
the Committee.
Members
The Directors who served on the Remuneration Committee during the year were:




Maria Lee (President and Chair of the Committee)
Graeme Watkins (appointed July 2015)
Rachel Wilkinson (appointed July 2015)

Lynne Ayres’ term of office ended in March 2015. Sue Rushton ceased to be a member of the
Committee at the end of the Society’s constitutional year in May 2015.
External Advice
The Remuneration Committee has access to an external specialist, New Bridge Street, to
provide independent, professional advice to them on remuneration policy, salary ranges and
other elements of remuneration, when required.
Meetings
The Committee has met four times during the year. The Committee is chaired by the President
of the Society. The Chief Executive attends meetings of the Committee to make
recommendations relating to the remuneration of the Management Executive. The Support
Services Executive provides advice and guidance to the Committee. The Society Secretary, or
in his absence the Assistant Society Secretary, acts as secretary to the Committee.
The Chief Executive is not in attendance when his own remuneration is considered.
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Remuneration Policy and Outcomes
Policy
The Society’s remuneration policy for the Management Executive is to apply the median of
market based salaries once the individual has become fully established in post and
performance is viewed as fully acceptable.
The policy for the Management Executive Incentive Scheme is to operate an arrangement that
is set below the market base for comparable schemes.
Management Executive total remuneration consists of base salary, pension, benefits-in-kind
and a performance related incentive scheme.
Remuneration structure
A Management Executive Incentive Scheme is in operation. The revised scheme is set below
the market base for comparable schemes, incorporating long term and short term targets based
on both financial and non-financial measures.
Any payments due under the Management Executive Incentive Scheme are non-pensionable.
The scheme rewards performance over a rolling three year period and incorporates long term
targets covering cumulative trading profit, customer service and colleague engagement. In
2016 an additional metric of Corporate Responsibility was included in the long term component
of the Scheme.
Remuneration for other colleagues
The Committee takes into consideration the pay and conditions of all employees below
Executive level when considering Executive pay.
The table below shows the approximate ratio of the Chief Executive’s base salary and total
target remuneration (pre and post-tax) relative to the lowest rate of pay in the Society, and
compares this with typical ratios in the wider PLC retail sector. As the table indicates, the total
pay ratio for the Society is significantly lower than in the PLC retail sector.
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The pre-tax pay ratio between the highest and lowest paid employee is 35 for the Society
compared to 76 in the wider retail PLC retail sector. The post-tax pay ratio between the highest
and lowest paid employee is 24 for the Society compared to 50 for retail PLCs.
Base salary
The Society’s remuneration policy for the Management Executive is that base salaries should
be at the median level for the relevant sector, having regard for job scope, function and the size
and complexity of the business. In determining salary levels, the committee also considers the
scope of each role and internal relativities between other positions within the Society
Base salaries are increased each year in line with the National Association of Co-operative
Officials (‘NACO’) agreement to reflect inflation. In addition to the NACO increase, a formal
review of Executive salaries is undertaken when necessary or when a material change in
responsibility or scope occurs for an individual.
The last review took place in February 2015. This review resulted in a salary uplift for the
Corporate Services Executive and the Support Services Executive. The review was carried out
following the reduction in size of the Management Executive which took place in late 2014 and
the subsequent increase in responsibilities for the remaining roles.
Other than the annual pay award effective from 25 January 2015, salaries for the remainder of
the Executive remained unchanged in the period under review.
Management Executive Incentive Scheme
The Management Executive Incentive Scheme (MEIS) is a discretionary, non-contractual
element of the Management Executive remuneration package and comprises two elements:


An annual incentive plan linked to annual financial performance targets and payable after
the performance outcomes for the relevant financial year are assessed.



A long term incentive linked to three year performance objectives and payable following the
end of a three year performance period (described in the long-term incentive section).

A disproportionate emphasis on incentive pay is considered inappropriate for the Society’s
Management Executive and therefore on-target and maximum bonus opportunity levels are
significantly lower than those available to executives in PLCs.
Annual Incentive
The annual incentive payment for on-target financial performance is currently 12.5%. An award
of 25% is payable under this scheme reflecting the significant outperformance against budget
during the year 2015/6 (prior year 2014/15: £nil).
Other Society managers participate in a performance based annual incentive scheme, including
all managers covered by the NACO agreement and retail store managers.
In addition, all other Society colleagues, with the exception of the Management Executive, are
eligible to receive an annual Colleague Dividend based on the Society’s financial performance.
The payment of the Colleague Dividend is subject to Members’ approval at the Annual General
Meeting.
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Long-term incentive (LTI)
Each participant is eligible for a long-term incentive grant, in each year that the Scheme is
operated. A grant gives the participant an entitlement to a payment following the end of a three
year performance period.
The targets for the LTI are based on performance over a three year period incorporating
cumulative Society trading profit (with a 70% weighting), Customer Satisfaction (10% weighting)
Employee Engagement (10% weighting) Corporate Responsibility (10% weighting)
A payment of up to 25% of base salary for achieving outstanding performance can be made. A
payment of 12.5% is triggered if target is achieved. A payment of 4.58% in respect of the 2012
LTI scheme was made in May 2015. An LTI payment of 4.38% is payable in respect of the
scheme covering the three years ended January 2016.
Pensions
The Society operates a Defined Contribution pension scheme, which is administered by
Standard Life. The Executive receive the same level of Employer contributions as all other
members of the plan.
As a result of the introduction of the Lifetime Allowance in 2006, members of the Executive
were offered the option to withdraw from pension provision and to receive a salary supplement
instead. The Chief Executive took this option in April 2012 and receives a salary supplement of
8% as a result of this arrangement.
Benefits-in-kind
Other benefits available to Executives during the year comprised the provision of a car or cash
alternative, life assurance, permanent health insurance, private healthcare and an annual
medical examination. A fuel benefit is provided for some Executives.
The value of these benefits is shown in the annual remuneration table. If a car has been chosen
the taxable benefit is included.
Service Contracts
All members of the Management Executive, including the Chief Executive, are entitled to
12 months’ notice.
Redundancy
Mark Ruttley, General Manager IS and Ian Callaghan, General Manager Property left the
Society during the year. This was reported in last year’s report.

Page 24 of 88

Annual Remuneration Table
This table provides the details of the remuneration received by Executives for the financial year
under review.

Date of
Employment
appointment
commenced
to Executive

Name

Basic
salary
2015/16

Benefitsin-kind
(Inc. 8%1
Pension
Supp)

Vested
LTIP
2013
4.38%4

Employer
contributions
2015/16
to Group
total
Personal
emoluments
Pension Plan
in 2015/16

2014/15
total
emoluments

Ian Callaghan2
General
Manager Property

19/03/2012

19/03/2012

£13,198

£1,025

0

£1,076

£15,299

£360,131

Tony Carroll
Deputy Chief
and Trading
Executive

23/02/1987

18/08/2005

£368,715

£19,364

£14,330

0

£402,409

£391,064

Martyn Cheatle
Chief Executive

02/09/2001

02/09/2001

£491,621

£53,6061

£20,472

0

£565,699

£551,725

12/07/2010

12/07/2010

£206,872

£9,486

£7,390

£16,549

£240,297

£203,523

23/07/1984

10/03/2003

£184,230

£14,445

£6,979

£18,509

£224,163

£204,811

01/06/2005

29/01/2007

£40,121

£2,177

0

£3,258

£45,556

£378,857

01/07/1986

04/09/2011

£119,925

£10,687

£4,753

£12,003

£147,368

£143,715

David Grady
Corporate
Services
Executive
Tracey Orr
Support
Services
Executive
Mark Ruttley3
General
Manager Information
Solutions
James Watts
Secretary

1

Benefits-in-kind include the provision of a car or a cash alternative, fuel, private healthcare and travel
insurance. The Chief Executive’s benefits-in-kind include an 8% pension supplement.

2

Date of leaving 27 February 2015

3

Date of leaving 01 June 2015

4

LTIP award of 4.58% relates to performance over the three years ended January 2015 in respect of
cumulative Society trading profit and average scores over the three year period in respect of customer
service standards and employee engagement.
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External Directorships – Management Executive
Martyn Cheatle, Chief Executive:


Director of Federal Retail and Trading Services Limited, appointed in October 2014



Director of Thomas Cook Co-operative Travel Limited, appointed October 2011
Martyn Cheatle receives no remuneration in respect of these appointments.

David Grady, Corporate Services Executive:


Director of Anglia Home Furnishings Limited (‘AHF’), appointed in June 2014. This
appointment is in accordance with the Society’s investment in AHF.



Elected Independent Society Member of The Co-operative Group National Members’
Council
David Grady receives no remuneration in respect of these appointments.

Tracey Orr, Support Services Executive:


Chair and Director of Co-operative Employers Association.
Tracey Orr receives no remuneration in respect of this appointment.

Board Director Fees
This section of the Report provides details of the fees, expenses and benefits for Directors of
the Society.
Rule 12.23 provides that “Directors and Regional Committee members shall be entitled to be
paid fees which shall be determined by the members at a members meeting. The Board
shall determine the level of expenses and delegation fees to be paid for attending on the
Society’s business.”
A revised basis of remuneration was approved by the Members at the Annual Meeting held
in April / May 2007. Provision was also made for fees to be reviewed annually to reflect cost
of living increases and to meet expenses incurred by Directors and Regional Committee
members on Society business. The benchmark for the increase is the November year on
year movement in the Retail Prices Index.
Expenses
Delegation fees are payable per day where Directors and Regional Committee Members are
formally appointed to represent the Society, as follows:









Shareholder meetings (e.g. The Co-operative Group)
Co-operative Congress
Co-operatives UK Consumer Council meetings and other national events
Director Training
Board Visits
Trade Conferences
Membership & Community Council meetings / activity
Society Co-op Party Council meetings

In addition to the Delegation Fee, reasonable travelling expenses and accommodation costs
are reimbursed.
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Benefits
The Society’s Colleague Discount scheme is available to Directors and their partners. A
small number of Directors are also members of the Society’s pension scheme in respect of
service as an employee with the Society.
Board Director Fees
Board / SubCommittee

Board

Sub-Committee

Role

Fees £

Director

7,677

President

7,677

Vice-President

3,838

Corporate Pension Trustee Director

959

Audit & Risk Committee

767

Remuneration Committee

321

Other Sub-Committees

£63 per meeting

Directors’ Remuneration Table
The table below lists the fees paid to the Directors of the Society who served during the year
under review:
Fees
2015/16
£

Director

2014/15
£

Jane Avery

5,536

-

Richard Bickle

8,489

5,427

Sean Clothier

7,677

5,747

12,080

11,240

David Ellgood

7,677

7,622

Max Hunt

8,322

5,718

16,823

15,400

Marta Mayhew

7,677

5,427

Martyn McCarthy

7,145

-

Tanya Noon

5,846

-

Sue Rushton

8,004

6,406

Paul Singh

9,094

6,659

Graeme Watkins

8,355

5,427

Rachel Wilkinson

6,956

-

Elaine Dean (Vice-President)

Maria Lee (President)
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Fees
2015/16
£

2014/15
£

Lynne Ayres

1,292

7,789

Robin Farrell

2,229

8,475

Neil Mackie

1,347

8,270

Stuart Unwin

2,389

8,381

Former Directors

Expenses
Directors are reimbursed all reasonable expenses incurred while carrying out their duties
for the Society. In addition, an attendance allowance of £20 per day can be claimed by
Directors who participate in pre-approved external meetings and events on behalf of the
Society.
External Directorships and Other Relevant Appointments – Board Directors
Jane Avery

Director and employee, CASE Limited

Richard Bickle

Director, Revolver Co-operative Limited
Director, Birmingham Co-operative Film Society Limited
Director and Secretary, Friends of the Earth (Birmingham)
Limited
Director, Co-operative Press Limited

Elaine Dean

Director and Chair, Co-operative Press Limited
Director and Vice Chair, Supporters Direct
Vice Chair, RamsTrust
Elected Independent Society Member of The Co-operative
Group National Members’ Council (from Co-operative Press)

Maria Lee

Elected Independent Society Member of The Co-operative
Group National Members’ Council

Tanya Noon

Director, RamsTrust
Director, Revolver Co-operative Limited
Elected member of The Co-operative Group National Members’
Council and member of The Senate (as an individual member of
The Co-operative Group)

Paul Singh

Director, Co-operatives UK Limited
Non-Executive Director of Fry Housing Trust

Rachel Wilkinson

Director and employee, R W Legal Limited
Director, Catalyst Science Discovery Centre and Museum Trust
Ltd (registered charity)
Company Secretary: The Landing at Media City Limited;
Cheshire Shutters Limited; Intoafrica UK Limited

Lynne Ayres
Term of office ended
19 March 2015

Director, HC Solicitors LLP
Vice Chair, Peterborough Cathedral Development &
Preservation Trust
Director, Manor Estates (Sibson) Limited
Director, Shelton’s of Peterborough Limited
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Corporate Governance
The Board is at the apex of the Society’s governance arrangements ensuring that the Society’s
objectives are delivered in a controlled and transparent manner.
As a Registered Society, Central England Co-operative is not required to comply with the
provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code, which applies to listed companies.
However, Co-operatives UK has published a Code of Best Practice for consumer co-operatives,
which is based on the UK Corporate Governance Code, but applicable to the particular
governance circumstances of a Co-operative Society.
Under the terms of the Code’s compliance assessment, the Board has a responsibility to
ensure that the Society complies with those recommendations that are appropriate to its
circumstances, or to explain its reasons where this is not the case.
Corporate Governance Code for Consumer Co-operatives
The version of the Corporate Governance Code applicable to the current reporting period is
The Corporate Governance Code for Consumer Societies, published by Co-operatives UK in
2013 ( the Code). The Code is available on Co-operatives UK’s website (www.uk.coop).
The Society conforms with the majority of the Code’s provisions and principles and where it
does not a brief explanation has been detailed below and by providing this the Board believes
that it has fully complied with Code.
The following explanations are provided:
Principle D – The Role of Directors
Provision 42 – “Persons closely associated with the co-operative’s competitors, or with
suppliers, which in the opinion of the board are dependent on the co-operative’s patronage to a
material extent, (and the partners of the foregoing), should not serve on the board.”
The Society’s Rules do not set out any such restrictions on Directors partners. However no
current Director or their partners are closely associated with the Society’s competitors or
suppliers.
Principle H – The Chair
Provision 68 - “A chair should have served at least one term of office as director before being
appointed to the role.”
The Board appoints the Chair based on the relevant skills, knowledge and experience to fulfil
the role.
Provision 70 - “The chair should not be a current employee or superannuated employee who
has retired within the last three years or their spouses/partners.”
The Chair cannot be an employee but the Society Rules do not preclude a recently retired
employee from becoming Chair.
Principle I – The Chief Executive
Provision 75 - “There should be a chief executive succession plan. The board, or a nominated
committee of the board, normally the Search Committee, should review the plan at least
annually.”
The Board is aware that such arrangements are in place, supported by management
development programmes and the Society’s focus on developing talent.
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Principle L – Induction, Information and On-going Professional Development
Provision 87 – “The board should recognise the importance of frequent and structured training
and there should be a requirement for all directors to undertake professional development on
an on-going basis.”
Attendance at Board training is not a mandatory requirement unless expressly agreed by the
Board.
Principle N – Board Performance Evaluation
Provision 93 – “Appraisal of the chair should be carried out at least annually in his or her
absence to evaluate his or her performance and on other such occasions as are deemed
appropriate.”
Feedback to the President is provided as part of the Director appraisal process.
Principle P – The Search Committee
Provision 102 – “The Search Committee should formulate plans for succession for the board
and members of the management executive.”
The Search Committee’s Terms of Reference allow for Board succession planning as far as is
possible. The Chief Executive is responsible for succession planning in respect of the
management executive.
Principle Q – The Remuneration Committee
Provision 110 – “The committee should make recommendations to the board on the level of
remuneration for each elected director and co-opted professional external director.”
Fees paid to Directors are determined by the members at members’ meetings as
recommended by the Board.
Provisions 117 and 118 – Policies and Procedures in respect of compensation for loss of office
for Directors and Management Executive
Compensation for loss of office in respect of the management executive is covered by way of
contractual arrangements. Other than in exceptional circumstances, the Board is satisfied that
it would not be appropriate to have such arrangements in place for Directors.
Principle R – The Audit Committee
Provision 130 – “The audit committee should have the right to report any decision by the board
to override its recommendations to the external auditors and to the members”
In accordance with the Audit & Risk Committee’s terms of Reference, the Committee meets the
external auditor at least once each year in private session and without the presence of
management. The Committee also meets the Internal Audit Manager at least once each year
without the presence of management. The Board and Audit & Risk Committee are satisfied
that these arrangements, coupled with the Committee’s clear terms of reference, provide a
rigorous and robust approach to the oversight of the Society’s system of internal controls.
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Director Attendance at Meetings
It is expected that Directors attend Board and relevant Committee meetings as a matter of
course. The table below lists the attendance record of Directors at Board and Committee
meetings for which they have been appointed for the year ended 23 January 2016.
The figures show the number of meetings attended with the number of meetings they were
eligible to attend included in brackets.

Committees
Directors

Board

Jane Avery

5 (6)

Lynne Ayres

2 (3)

Richard Bickle

13 (13)

Sean Clothier

12 (13)

Elaine Dean

11 (13)

Dave Ellgood

13 (13)

Robin Farrell

4 (4)

Max Hunt

13 (13)

Maria Lee

12 (13)

Neil Mackie
Marta Mayhew

2 (3)

Audit &
Risk

Search

2 (2)
2 (2)

Rules &
Practices

1 (1)
5 (5)

7 (7)

7 (7)

3 (5)
4 (4)

5 (5)

7 (7)

1 (1)

13 (13)

Martyn McCarthy

8 (9)

Tanya Noon

6 (6)

Sue Rushton

10 (11)

1 (2)

Paul Singh

12 (13)

4 (4)

4 (4)

2 (2)

Graeme Watkins

10 (11)

2 (2)

Rachel Wilkinson

7 (9)

Stuart Unwin

Remuneration

2 (3)

2 (2)
5 (5)

2 (2)
2 (2)

6 (6)

The Conduct Committee
The Conduct Committee met once during the year to receive a report from the Society
Secretary on matters related to the 2015 Board Director elections.

Internal Controls and Audit & Risk Committee
The Co-operatives UK Corporate Governance Code for Consumer Co-operatives requires the
Board of Directors to review the effectiveness of the Society’s system of internal controls. This
review covers all controls including financial, operational, compliance and risk management.
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The Board of Directors is ultimately responsible for the Society’s system of internal control and
for reviewing its effectiveness. Such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss. The Management Executive is responsible for
the implementation, day to day operation and management of the Society’s system of internal
control.
The Board of Directors has an established Audit & Risk Committee, which operates as a subcommittee of the Board and is responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of the Society’s
system of internal control. The members of the Committee during the year were:






Paul Singh (Chair)
Richard Bickle (appointed July 2015)
Neil Mackie (term of office ended March 2015)
Martyn McCarthy (appointed March 2015)
Graeme Watkins (appointed July 2015)

The following Directors ceased to be members of the Committee at the end of the Society’s
constitutional year in May 2015:



Sue Rushton
Stuart Unwin

The Audit & Risk Committee meets at least three times a year to:


monitor the integrity of the Society’s financial statements, including its annual and interim
reports, together with any significant financial reporting judgements contained in the
financial statements;



consider reports from the Management Executive, internal audit and external audit on the
systems of internal control and any material control weaknesses;



discuss with Management Executive the actions taken on problem areas identified in these
reports or by the Board;



review the effectiveness of the risk management process and ensure significant risk issues
are referred to the Board for consideration so that appropriate steps can be taken to
minimise such risks to the Society;



consider the effectiveness of the operation of the internal audit function;



consider the appointment of external auditors and in conjunction with management agree
the nature and scope of the external audit review;



review the external audit management letter and the management response to the report;
and



review the Society’s whistleblowing procedures to ensure arrangements are in place for
employees to raise concerns, in confidence, about possible wrongdoing in financial
reporting or other matters.

The Audit & Risk Committee also has a duty to discuss problems and reservations arising from
the Society’s audit and any matter the Auditor may wish to discuss, if necessary in the absence
of any management.
In addition, the Audit & Risk Committee carries out a periodic self-evaluation so as to ensure
that the remit set by the Board of Directors is being fully satisfied. In accordance with its terms
of reference, the remit of the Audit & Risk Committee is reviewed by the Board at least every
three years, so as to ensure that it fully meets best practice in corporate governance.
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Search Committee
During the year the Search Committee focused on the development and implementation of a
Director performance appraisal process, the purpose of which is to:




provide a forum for Directors to give and receive feedback on their performance and that
of the President;
identify areas of personal and or Board development; and
in respect of the two Independent Non-executive Directors (‘INEDs’), form the basis of
any recommendation to the Board concerning their reappointment.

The appraisal process consisted of a self-assessment survey, which formed the basis of a oneto-one meeting with the President; the appraisals of the INED’s mirrored this approach with the
addition of individual Directors providing their comments and feedback, on the INEDs, to the
President.
The President, in conjunction with the Search Committee, will review the Director performance
appraisal process during 2016 in order to consider key themes and trends from the exercise
and process improvements for the future.
In addition, the Search Committee has established and implemented new appraisal
arrangements for the annual performance reviews of the Chief Executive and Society
Secretary.
The members of the Committee during the year were:





Maria Lee (Chair)
Richard Bickle
Max Hunt
Paul Singh

Rules & Practices Committee
The Board has delegated to the Rules & Practices Committee the following duties:





to review and monitor the Rules of the Society;
to review the Society’s constitution and make recommendations on any changes as
appropriate;
to review and consider any matters referred to the Committee by the Board;
to review the Society’s compliance with the Co-operative UK’s Corporate Governance
Code for Consumer Co-operative Societies.

During the year the Committee conducted a comprehensive review of the Society’s Rulebook
with a view to improving its presentation, structure and ease of use. Subject to Board approval
and review by Co-operatives UK, it is intended to present the revised Rulebook to Members for
approval in 2016.
The members of the Committee during the year were:





Maria Lee (Chair)
Richard Bickle
Elaine Dean
Rachel Wilkinson
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Other Director duties
Directors are also appointed to Member & Community Councils (‘MCCs’) which in addition to
attending meetings involves participating in the Councils’ events and activities. The Directors
appointed to the MCCs during the year were:
Central MCC
 Jane Avery (from June 2015)
 Elaine Dean
 Max Hunt (to June 2015)

Eastern MCC
 Marta Mayhew
 Graeme Watkins

Western MCC
 Richard Bickle
 Dave Ellgood

In addition, Elaine Dean (Chair), Maria Lee, Richard Bickle and Dave Ellgood served on a Joint
Working Group which was established during the year to review the MCCs and the Society’s
wider Membership & Community strategy.
Three Directors serve on the Society’s Community Dividend Selection Committee. The
Committee meets quarterly to review grant applications. The Directors who served on the
Community Dividend Selection Committee during the year were:





Jane Avery (from June 2015)
Richard Bickle
Dave Ellgood (to June 2015)
Maria Lee

Board governance activities during the year
The Board remains alert to the importance of ensuring the Society has clear and effective
governance arrangements in place to oversee the Society’s and promote the long term success
of the business. In recognition of its pivotal role, the Board has worked jointly with the
management executive to introduce new ways of working in order to further strengthen the
Society’s governance arrangements.
As part of this process, the Board has prepared and implemented its own rationale statement to
set out the Board’s purpose:
We are collectively the custodians of the Society, acting in accordance with
co-operative values and principles for sustainable business success, to secure a
co-operative business for future generations, by:




working with the Executive to set and monitor the implementation of our
strategy
setting the ethos and culture of the Society
fulfilling our obligations to members and all stakeholders

The rationale statement was developed to focus and tangibly demonstrate the Board’s unity of
purpose and allow members to easily understand the function and ideals of their Board.
Board development continued to be an area of importance, with formal training provided by
external providers, and internally with operational ‘deep dives’, which focus on a particular area
of the Society’s business or key strategic topic.
For 2016 a schedule of Board development activities has been implemented and will be
reviewed on a continuing basis.
The Board has revised the induction process for new Directors, which was utilised following the
appointment of two new Directors during the year. For the first time the new Directors were
paired with a ‘mentor’, an established Board Director, to provide advice and support.
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The Board and the Executive
The Society strives for the highest professional standards and business performance and seeks
to maintain these standards across all of its operations. The Society has an appropriate
organisational structure for planning, executing, controlling and monitoring business operations
in order to achieve the Society’s objectives. The organisational structure has clearly defined
lines of responsibility and of delegated authority. In January 2015 the Board approved a
Schedule of Matters Reserved for the Board which clearly defines those responsibilities
reserved for the Board and those delegated to the Management Executive.
The Board is accountable to the whole membership and responsible for ensuring the Society
carries out its commitment to be a successful co-operative business, and serve the best
interests of the members as well as protecting the assets of the Society. In carrying out its
duties, the Board is collectively responsible for the control and direction of the affairs of the
Society. The Management Executive is responsible for the day to day operation of the Society.
Any decision which is likely to have a material impact on the Society from any perspective,
including but not limited to financial, operational, strategic or reputational is reserved for the
Board.
The Board, elected by members, and the Management Executive has primary responsibility for
setting the Society’s strategy and monitoring delivery of that strategy by management,
identifying key business risks facing the Society and for the development of policies and
procedures to manage those risks.
The Society operates a risk management process, which identifies the key risks facing each
business and reports to the Management Executive and Audit & Risk Committee on how these
risks are being managed. Regular self-assessment audits are carried out across the business
and these self-assessments are validated on a sample basis.
The Society's Internal Audit department performs independent reviews of operational and
financial control procedures across the business. The Risk & Compliance team is accountable
for ensuring the Society identifies and responds appropriately to the risks it faces, reporting
formally to the Society’s Risk Management Committee which in turn is accountable to the Board
for the appropriate management of risk. There is a continuous process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the Society, which operated during the
year under review and up to the date of approval of the Annual Report and Financial
Statements. This process, which includes the prioritisation of key risks, is regularly reviewed by
the Audit & Risk Committee on behalf of the Board.
The Risk & Compliance team also has operational responsibility for Health & Safety
management and Loss Prevention. The Risk & Compliance department works closely with the
Internal Audit function in order to provide an integrated approach to the prevention, detection
and reduction in losses arising from identified risks. Progress against management action plans
to overcome internal control weaknesses and business risks, is monitored and reported to the
Audit & Risk Committee.
Society management recognise the risks attendant on all areas of business resulting from
operating in increasingly competitive market places and continue to review processes and
procedures with the objective of ensuring effective controls are maintained, overcoming any
identified weaknesses and achieving business efficiencies. Where problems do arise positive
action is taken to implement appropriate control mechanisms.
Accordingly the Board of Directors confirm that the effectiveness of the system of control for the
year commencing 25 January 2015 and ending on 23 January 2016 has been reviewed in line
with the criteria set out in Corporate Governance Code for Consumer Co-operatives.

Page 35 of 88

Principal Risks and Uncertainties
The Society’s risk management process is closely linked to our long term strategy. Risk is an
inherent part of doing business. The management of these risks is based on a balance of risk
and reward determined through careful assessment of both the potential likelihood and impact.
Consideration is given to both financial as well as reputational impact. Each principal risk and
uncertainty is considered in the context of how it relates to the achievement of the Society’s
strategic objectives. The risk assessment process includes consideration of both the gross and
net risk, where gross risk reflects the risk exposure and risk landscape before considering the
mitigations in place, and net risk being the residual risk after mitigations.
The Society considers the key risks faced by the business to be in the following areas:











Business strategy and change
Trading operations
Health & Safety
Business continuity
Finance and treasury
Data
Colleague engagement, capability and succession
Pensions
Legislation and regulatory compliance
Co-operative values & principles

Other Corporate Matters
Political Donations
The Society welcomes into membership people who use its services and subscribe to the
values and principles of the co-operative movement, irrespective of their personal religious or
political beliefs or personal characteristics.
During the course of the year the Society's long-standing affiliation to the Co-operative Party
was maintained to secure a co-operative voice in the political arena in furtherance of our, and
the movement's, wider interests. This comprised paying a national subscription and also
funding and participating in Society Party Councils in our trading area.
The Directors were pleased to welcome the General Secretary of the Co-operative Party to
address a Board meeting during the year and have also met with representatives of other
subscribing societies to discuss the future funding and operations of the Party. As part of this
dialogue, Rule changes have been prepared for presentation to Members for approval in 2016
which will ensure that members have an appropriate say in the Society's political activity in
future.
The Group Revenue Account for the 52 weeks ended 23 January 2016 (Note 7 to the accounts)
report that £125,000 (2014/15: £120,000) was paid to the Co-operative Party during the year.
This includes support at national level and grants to the four Society Party Councils.
Withdrawable Share Capital
The Society has adopted a Code of Practice on Withdrawable Share Capital. Under the Code,
all those joining the Society or members investing through their share accounts are reminded in
written documentation that share capital is risk capital. A copy of the full Code can be obtained
from the Secretary and the Board takes this opportunity to state that, at present, the risk
associated with members’ withdrawable share capital is extremely low, given the strength of the
Balance Sheet published with this report.
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CENTRAL ENGLAND CO-OPERATIVE LIMITED
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 23 JANUARY 2016
1.

General information

The Central England Co-operative Limited is a registered co-operative society domiciled in
England and Wales. The address of the Society’s registered office is Central House,
Hermes Road, Lichfield, Staffordshire, WS13 6RH.
2.

Basis of preparation

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items
which are considered material in relation to the Group financial statements.
Statement of compliance
The Group financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Co-operative and
Communities Benefit Act 2014 and applicable UK accounting standards, including
FRS 102, ‘The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’.
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention except for
modification to the revaluation of certain land and buildings; and to fair value for certain
financial instruments, funeral bonds and investments as specified in the accounting policies
below. The financial statements are presented in pounds sterling and amounts have been
rounded to the nearest £’000.
This is the first period in which the financial statements have been prepared under
FRS 102. Refer to note 26 for an explanation of the transition.
Accounting date
For operational reasons the Group financial statements are prepared to the fourth Saturday
in the year ended 31 January. The current period is for the 52 weeks ended
23 January 2016 (2015: 52 weeks ended 24 January 2015).
Basis of consolidation
The Group financial statements consolidate the financial statements of Central England
Co-operative Limited and all its subsidiaries. Central England Co-operative Limited has not
presented its own financial statements as part of these Group financial statements as these
are filed separately.
Going concern
The directors are required to assess whether the Society has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. The financial statements have
been prepared on the assumption that the Society remains a going concern.
The Society currently meets its day to day working capital requirements from its cash
reserves and bank facilities and is forecast to stay within the current bank facilities for the
foreseeable future. The bank facilities consist of a revolving credit facility of £40,000,000
and a bank overdraft of £10,000,000 which is reviewed on an annual basis. There are two
financial covenants attached to the revolving credit facility which are tested on a quarterly
basis, neither of which are expected to be breached in the twelve months from the date of
signing these financial statements. The repayment terms and details of the revolving
facility are detailed in note 16 to the financial statements.
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CENTRAL ENGLAND CO-OPERATIVE LIMITED
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 23 JANUARY 2016

Going concern (continued)
The directors have reviewed the forecast of cash flows for the current period and the
following period and have formed the judgment that, at the time of approval of these
financial statements, the Society has sufficient resources with its current facilities to
continue operating for the foreseeable future. On this basis the directors continue to
prepare the financial statements as a going concern.
3.

Significant judgements and estimates

The Group makes judgements and assumptions concerning the future that impact the
application of policies and reported amounts. The resulting accounting estimates calculated
using these judgements and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual
results but are based on historical experience and expectations of future events.
The judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty that have a significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the financial statements are discussed below.
Goodwill impairment
The Group is required to assess whether goodwill has suffered any impairment loss, based
on the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit (CGU) or group of income
generating units to which it is allocated. The recoverable amounts of the cash generating
units have been determined based on the higher of value in use and fair value less costs to
sell and these calculations require the use of estimates. Actual outcomes could vary from
these estimates.
Impairment of assets other than goodwill
Assets are subject to impairment reviews based on whether current or future events and
circumstances suggest that their recoverable amount may be less than their carrying value.
Recoverable amounts of the cash generating units have been determined based on the
higher of value in use and fair value less costs and these calculations require the use of
estimates.
Impairment models are continually reviewed to ensure data and assumptions are
appropriate. The accuracy of any such impairment calculation will be affected by
unexpected changes to the economic situation, and assumptions which differ from actual
outcomes. As such, judgement is applied when determining the levels of provisioning.
Pension Costs
The Group operates a defined benefit scheme for its employees. The present value of the
scheme’s liabilities recognised at the reporting date and the net financing charge
recognised in the income statement are dependent on interest rates of high quality
corporate bonds. Other key assumptions within this calculation are based on market
conditions or estimates of future events, including mortality rates, as set out in note 18. Any
changes to assumptions used will impact the carrying value of the retirement benefit
obligation. As detailed in note 18, the retirement benefit obligations are most sensitive to
changes in the discount rate.
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CENTRAL ENGLAND CO-OPERATIVE LIMITED
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 23 JANUARY 2016
Provisions
Provisions have been made for onerous leases, discontinued operations and other areas
including reorganisation; decommissioning and property. These provisions are estimates
and the actual costs and timing of future cash flows are dependent on future events and
market conditions. Any difference between expectations and the actual future liability will be
accounted for in the period when such determination is made. The carrying amount of
provisions will be impacted by changes in the discount rate. Details of provisions are set out
in note 17.
Supplier rebates
The Group receives supplier rebate income from the buying group, Federal Retail Trading
Services (FRTS). At year end, the Group is required to estimate supplier income due from
annual agreements for marketing costs and volume rebates which span across the year
end date.
Estimates are required due to the fact that final confirmation of amounts due is often only
received after the year end date. All rebate income is received from third parties via the
supplier agreements with FRTS. The estimates for this income are prepared following
discussions with FRTS throughout the year and are regularly reviewed by senior
management.
A forecast is received each year for the income that is expected and this is recognised in
accordance with paragraph 23.3 to FRS 102 across the period to which it relates.
Investment properties
Each year, the investment property portfolio is revalued at open market value by external
valuers of which approximately one fifth is inspected each year. Valuations require use of
judgements that incorporate market conditions which are subject to fluctuations. Future
disposals of investment properties may vary from the valuation.

4. Principal Accounting policies
Gross sales
Gross sales is a memorandum disclosure and represents the total transaction value of all
the Group’s services. The gross value of sales includes amounts recognised in respect of
sales made on an agency basis, principally relating to travel agents, foreign exchange
bureaux, concessions in department stores and certain petrol stations.
Turnover
Turnover is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of VAT,
discounts and incentives.
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CENTRAL ENGLAND CO-OPERATIVE LIMITED
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 23 JANUARY 2016
Retail turnover
Turnover through retail outlets are shown net of returns, employee discounts, vouchers and
sales made on an agency basis. Commission income is recognised in revenue based on
the terms of the contract.
Wholesale turnover
Turnover from the provision of distribution services to third party independent Co-operative
Societies. These sales are recognised at the point when the customer has signed for the
delivery of the goods.
Funeral turnover
Revenue from funeral operations comprises the amount recoverable from clients for the
provision of funerals, income from crematoria and other services, to the extent that those
services have been performed or goods supplied.
Revenue on pre-arranged funeral plans is recognised when the funeral is performed by the
Group. Income accrued on the original investment is recognised within Other Income.
The Group pays certain disbursements such as crematoria fees, cemetery fees, Ministers
fees and Doctors fees on behalf of clients. These amounts are recovered as part of the
invoicing process. However, these amounts are not included within turnover as they are
simply passed on to clients at cost.
Travel Commissions
Travel commissions are recognised at the point of sale.
Rental Income
Rental income is generated from the Group’s investment property portfolio, with receivables
being recognised on a straight line basis over the lease term. The cost of lease incentives
is recognised as a reduction to rental income over the lease term on a straight line basis.
Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits and contributions to defined contribution plans are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
Management Executive Incentive Scheme (MEIS)
The Group has a long-term scheme (MEIS) in place to incentivise the Management
Executive within the Society. An expense is recognised over the vesting period of 3 years
based upon meeting specific targets and objectives.
Exceptional Items
Exceptional items are disclosed separately as they are material to the Group or
non-recurring in nature and require further explanation.
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CENTRAL ENGLAND CO-OPERATIVE LIMITED
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 23 JANUARY 2016

Investment Income
Interest receivable is accounted for on an accruals basis. Dividends are accounted for
when the right to receive is established.
Payments to and on behalf of stakeholders
The surplus shown in the income statement is not considered to be attributable solely to the
members, but also to various stakeholders including the Group’s employees, charitable
institutions or other organisations with objectives or purposes consistent with those of the
Group.
Payments to and on behalf of stakeholders are recognised in accordance with the Group’s
rules to include approved dividends, member relations costs and donations to the
Co-operative Party. Payments to and on behalf of stakeholders are recognised in the
income statement in the period in which they are approved by the members.
Intangible Fixed Assets
Goodwill
Goodwill on acquisition is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the fair value of the
consideration of the business combination over the fair value of the Group’s share of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities.
Following initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated
amortisation, any impairment losses and is amortised evenly over its useful economic life.
Computer software
Computer software and licences are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
provision for impairment. Computer software is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
useful economic life of between five to ten years.
Investment properties
Certain of the Group’s properties are held for long-term investment. The investment
properties are initially recognised at cost, and are subsequently measured at market value.
Investment properties are revalued at least once every five years at open market values by
external valuers. In all other years, all investment property valuations are reviewed on a
“desk-top” basis.
All surpluses and deficits arising on revaluation to market value are taken to the income
statement. No depreciation or amortisation is provided in respect of freehold investment
properties and leasehold investment properties with over 20 years remaining on the lease.
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CENTRAL ENGLAND CO-OPERATIVE LIMITED
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 23 JANUARY 2016

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation
Tangible fixed assets are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets, other
than investment properties, properties under development, assets in the course of
construction and freehold land, at rates calculated to write off the cost of fixed assets, less
their estimated residual value, over their expected useful lives on the following bases:
Freehold buildings
Leasehold properties
Plant & machinery, fixtures & fittings
Petrol station decommissioning costs
Funeral fleet vehicles and other transport

2% - 10% per annum
Over the unexpired part of the lease
6.7% - 33.3% per annum
2% per annum
10% - 50% per annum

Impairment
An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount (higher of value in use or fair value less
costs to sell). Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash generating units are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to cash generating units, and then to reduce the
carrying value of other fixed assets.
Assets leased to the group
Leases are classified as finance leases when the terms of the lease transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.
Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised at the fair value of the leased
assets (or if lower, the present value of minimum lease payments) at the inception of the
lease. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the statement of financial
position as a finance lease obligation. Lease payments are apportioned between finance
charges and reduction of the lease obligation using the effective interest method so as to
achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance on the remaining liability. The
outstanding commitment is analysed between current and long term liabilities. Assets held
under finance leases are included in tangible fixed assets and are depreciated in
accordance with the Group’s normal accounting policy.
The aggregate benefit of lease incentives are recognised as a reduction to the expense
recognised over the lease term on a straight line basis.
Rentals due under operating leases are charged to income statement over the lease term
on a straight line basis.
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CENTRAL ENGLAND CO-OPERATIVE LIMITED
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 23 JANUARY 2016

Investments in subsidiaries
The consolidated financial statements incorporates the financial statements of the society
and entities controlled by the Group (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Group
has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.
The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in total
comprehensive income from the effective date acquisition and up to the effective date of
disposal, as appropriate using accounting policies consistent with those of the parent. All
intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated in full on
consolidation.
Investments
Investments in shares are measured at fair value. Changes in the fair value are recognised
in the income statement in the period in which they occur.
Assets held for resale
Fixed assets are treated as held for resale when a decision has been taken by the Board
that they are to be disposed of and a binding sales agreement has been entered into. At
this time, an impairment review is carried out and assets are held for resale at the lower of
their carrying value or estimated sale proceeds less costs of selling.
Stocks
Stocks are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of manufactured goods
comprises materials, direct labour and appropriate overheads incurred in the normal course
of business in bringing the product to its current location and condition. Consignment
vehicles are regarded as being effectively under the control of the Group and are included
in stocks on the statement of financial position as the Group has the significant risk and
rewards of ownership even though legal title has not passed. The corresponding liability is
included in trade creditors. Net realisable value is the price at which stocks can be sold in
the normal course of business after allowing for the costs of realisation.
Some of the Group’s Transport contracts are considered to be long-term in nature. Profit
reflecting the proportion of work carried out to the year-end date is reflected within the
valuation of stock.
Debtors
Debtors are measured at amortised cost less any impairment.
Creditors
Short term trade creditors are measured at amortised cost. Other financial liabilities
including bank loans are measured initially at fair value, net of transaction costs and are
measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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Derivative financial instruments
The Group currently uses an interest rate SWAP instrument as part of an overall interest
rate risk management strategy. At the reporting date the SWAP is recognised at fair value,
with movement in fair value being recognised in the income statement.
Taxation
Current tax
Current tax is accounted for on the basis of tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at
the reporting date. Current tax is charged or credited to the income statement.
Deferred taxation
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all timing differences that have originated but not
reversed at the reporting date, where transactions or events that result in an obligation to
pay more tax in the future or a right to pay less tax in the future have occurred at the
reporting date.
A net deferred tax asset is regarded as recoverable and therefore recognised only when,
on the basis of all available evidence, it can be regarded as more likely than not that there
will be suitable taxable profits against which to recover carried forward tax losses and from
which the future reversal of underlying timing differences can be deducted.
Deferred tax is measured at the average tax rates that are expected to apply in the periods
in which the timing differences are expected to reverse based on tax rates and laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax is
measured on a non-discounted basis.
Deferred tax is charged or credited to the income statement, except when it relates to items
charged to other comprehensive income, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in
other comprehensive income respectively.
Funeral plans
Amounts received in advance for funeral plans are recorded at fair value as assets and
liabilities on the statement of financial position. The liability is apportioned into less than and
more than one year based upon the Group’s experience of funerals carried out under its
pre-payment plans over the last five years.
All money received for funeral plans taken out from 1 January 2002 is paid into a contract
for whole life insurance on the life of the customer for the purpose of providing the funeral
and disclosed within investments at market value. This investment strategy complies with
the provisions of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000. All money received for
funeral plans taken out before 2002 is held in a separate trustee administered bank account
and disclosed within investments at market value. Interest income earned on these cash
deposits in the year is not recognised in the income statement, but is held on the statement
of financial position in investments and released to profits on performance of the related
funeral.
Upon redemption of a funeral plan, the interest earned over the life of the plan is
recognised in Other Income.
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Provisions
Provisions are recognised when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of a past event, for which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefit will be
required to settle the obligation, and where the amount of the obligation can be reliably
estimated. If the effect is material provisions are determined by discounting the expected,
risk adjusted, future cash flows. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as a finance
cost in the income statement.
Holiday pay provision
The Group provides for the following short and long term liabilities:(i) Annual holiday pay provision
The Group recognises a provision for annual leave accrued by employees as a result of
service rendered in the current period, but has not been taken by the reporting date, and
which employees are entitled to carry forward and use within the next twelve months. The
provision is measured at the total salary cost payable and national insurance for the period
of absence.
(ii) Holiday Banking Scheme provision
The scheme allows certain employees with a minimum of 5 years’ service, to bank up to 5
days of their annual holiday entitlement. The accrual is evaluated based on the number of
days banked, and the current salary costs. Banked holiday can be redeemed at any point,
therefore the liability is considered short term.
(iii) Pre April 1998 holiday pay provision
For employees who commenced employment on or before 1 April 1998, the Group accrues
for the cost of outstanding holiday entitlement. These employees were required to accrue
one year of their annual holiday entitlement before taking any holiday. The required accrual
is calculated by multiplying one year of their annual holiday entitlement for each employee
by their current daily pay rate and discounting the value over the anticipated redemption
period.
Onerous lease provision
Where the Group is committed to future rental payments on a property that are in excess of
income received, an onerous lease provision is made. The provision is discounted at the
risk free rate.
Decommissioning provision
Provisions are made in respect of decommissioning obligations for petrol filling stations.
The amounts provided are based on the Group’s best estimate of the present value of costs
to be incurred to decommission the petrol tanks in the future.
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Pension costs
The Group currently operates a defined benefit pension scheme, the Central England
Co-operative Society Limited Pension Scheme. This Scheme was created by merging the
Midlands Co-operative Society Limited Employees’ Pension Scheme which closed to future
accrual and new entrants on 30 July 2011 and the Anglia Regional Co-operative Society
Limited Employees’ Superannuation Fund which closed to future accrual on
14 August 2009.
The assets of the scheme are held in a separate trustee administered fund.
The Scheme is subject to the Statutory Funding Objective under the Pensions Act 2004. A
valuation of the Scheme is carried out at least once every three years to determine whether
the Statutory Funding Objective is met. As part of the process the Society agrees with the
Trustees of the Scheme the contributions to be paid to address any shortfall against the
Statutory Funding Objective.
The most recent comprehensive actuarial valuation of the Scheme was carried out as at
31December 2014. The results of that valuation have been updated to 23 January 2016
allowing for cashflows in and out of the Scheme and changes to assumptions over the
period.
Prior year figures included in these disclosures have been restated under FRS 102 for
comparison, which is a requirement as part of the transition to FRS 102.
The deficit on the defined benefit scheme is recognised in full on the statement of financial
position and represents the difference between the fair value of the assets and the present
value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting date.
Finance income is recognised in the revenue account based on the interest on pension
assets less the interest on pension scheme liabilities.
Differences between the interest and actual return on assets, experience gains and losses
and changes in actuarial assumptions are included directly in the Other Comprehensive
Income.
The Group also operates a defined contribution scheme. The contributions payable to the
scheme in respect of the accounting period are charged to the revenue account.

Share interest
The Group’s members’ share capital maintains a fixed nominal value and attracts interest.
Share interest is disclosed as a movement in equity and within the reconciliation of
movements in members’ funds.

Page 49 of 88

CENTRAL ENGLAND CO-OPERATIVE LIMITED
GROUP INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 23 JANUARY 2016

Note

GROSS SALES (including VAT)
Less Value Added Tax
GROSS SALES (excluding VAT)

2016
52 weeks

2015
52 weeks

£’000

£’000

928,366
(83,709)
844,657

955,673
(85,061)
870,612

806,847
(571,481)

832,321
(596,058)

235,366

236,263

(215,964)
1,373

(215,687)
849

Trading profit

20,775

21,425

Profit on disposal of fixed assets
Impairment of fixed assets
Profit on revaluation of investment properties
Exceptional items
OPERATING PROFIT

1,307
(1,363)
4,815
(5,699)
19,835

860
(2,340)
3,774
(4,865)
18,854

(268)
4,867
(6,830)
(4,159)

165
695
(5,109)
(4,341)

13,445

10,264

(4,682)

(4,884)

8,763

5,380

(5,675)

(2,039)

3,088

3,341

1

TURNOVER
Cost of sales

1

GROSS PROFIT
Administrative expenses
Other income

2

(Loss)/Gain on financial assets at fair value
Interest and dividends receivable
Other finance cost
Interest payable

4

25
5
18
6

PROFIT BEFORE PAYMENTS TO AND ON BEHALF
OF STAKEHOLDERS
Payments to and on behalf of stakeholders

7

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
Taxation

8

RETAINED PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD
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CENTRAL ENGLAND CO-OPERATIVE LIMITED
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Note

Retained profit for the financial period
Actuarial gains/(losses) on pension scheme
Movement on current tax
Movement on deferred tax
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the
financial period
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18

2016
52 weeks
£’000

2015
52 weeks
£’000

3,088

3,341

82,197

(80,763)

1,901
(17,434)

8,556
6,418

69,752

(62,448)

CENTRAL ENGLAND CO-OPERATIVE LIMITED
GROUP STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 23 JANUARY 2016

Note

2016
£’000

FIXED ASSETS
Intangible assets
Tangible assets
Investments

9
10
11

CURRENT ASSETS
Stocks
Debtors: Amounts falling due within one year
Debtors: Amounts falling due after one year
Cash at bank and in hand
CREDITORS:
Amounts falling due within one year
Creditors
Borrowings

2015
£’000

£’000

27,743
389,846
93,932
511,521

25,588
390,284
106,542
522,414

12
13
13

39,411
16,854
21,309
14,291
91,865

42,480
16,842
42,516
13,702
115,540

15
16

(78,292)
(245)
(78,537)

(83,666)
(268)
(83,934)

NET CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES

£’000

13,328

31,606

535,742

543,127

CREDITORS:
Amounts falling due in more than one year
Creditors
Borrowings

15
16

(169,639)
(29,467)

(180,273)
(22,440)
(202,713)

(199,106)

Provisions for liabilities and charges

17

(18,651)

(21,405)

Net pension liability

18

(92,183)

(170,225)

222,195

152,391

22,803
24,679
174,713

22,550
25,203
104,638

222,195

152,391

NET ASSETS
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital
Non-distributable reserve
Revenue reserve

19

MEMBERS' FUNDS
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GROUP STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 23 JANUARY 2016
Note

Net cash generated from operating activities

2016
52 weeks
£’000
£’000

21

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from disposal of tangible assets
Purchase of tangible assets
Net Interest paid
Dividends received from trading
investments
Purchase of business

£’000

15,568

30,983

16,541
(32,654)
(641)

6,803
(36,466)
(329)

4,667
-

426
(1,299)

(12,087)

Net cash from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
(Repayment)/Draw down of bank loans
Increase/(Decrease) in share capital
Interest paid and pension deficit funding
Repayment of finance lease obligations

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents at beginning of the period
Cash and Cash Equivalents at end of period
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(30,865)

5,891
(560)
(6,761)
159

(6,773)
52
(6,034)
(276)

Net cash used in financing activities

2015
52 weeks
£’000

(13,031)

(1,271)

5,865

(16,568)

8,426

24,994

14,291

8,426

CENTRAL ENGLAND CO-OPERATIVE LIMITED
GROUP STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 23 JANUARY 2016

At 25 January 2014 (as previously stated)
Changes on transition to FRS 102 (note 26)
At 25 January 2014 (restated)
Profit for the financial period
Other comprehensive losses
Total comprehensive loss for the period
Transfer of non-distributable reserves
Transfer of realised gains
Permanent diminution
Share capital contributions
Share capital withdrawals
Share interest
At 24 January 2015
Profit for the financial period
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the period
Transfer of non-distributable reserves
Transfer of realised gains
Share capital contributions
Share capital withdrawals
Share interest
At 23 January 2016

Share
Capital
£’000

Nondistributable
Reserve
£’000

Revenue
Reserve
£’000

Total
£’000

22,925
22,925

15,391
15,391

196,924
(23,253)
173,671

219,849
(7,862)
211,987

216
(775)
184

7,170
(754)
3,396
-

3,341
(65,774)
(62,433)
(7,170)
754
(184)

3,341
(65,774)
(62,433)
3,396
216
(775)
-

22,550

25,203

104,638

152,391

511
(459)
201

4,815
(5,339)
-

22,803

24,679

Page 54 of 88

3,088
66,664
69,752
(4,815)
5,339
(201)
174,713

3,088
66,664
69,752
511
(459)
222,195

CENTRAL ENGLAND CO-OPERATIVE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 23 JANUARY 2016

1

GROSS SALES AND TURNOVER

Gross Sales
(excluding VAT)
2016
2015
52 weeks 52 weeks
£’000
£’000

Turnover
2016
52 weeks
£’000

2015
52 weeks
£’000

Retail – Food
Retail – Fuel
Wholesale
Funeral
Travel
Other
Rent received from investment properties

603,767
95,101
46,597
38,160
36,289
1,438

603,953
110,512
46,010
37,376
36,891
532

599,834
95,101
46,597
38,160
2,407
1,443

600,174
110,512
46,010
37,376
2,382
529

9,759

9,959

9,759

9,959

Total before transport

831,111

845,233

793,301

806,942

Transport

13,546
844,657

25,379
870,612

13,546
806,847

25,379
832,321

Total

Turnover consists of sales made in the United Kingdom and Ireland. Transport has been
disclosed separately above following the disposal of the Group’s multi-franchise motor
dealership operation in Lincoln and the closure of the specialist vehicle construction business.
Turnover analysed by category was as follows:
2016
£'000

2015
£'000

752,686

783,050

37,070

33,247

Commission

7,332

6,065

Rent received from investment properties

9,759

9,959

806,847

832,321

Sales of goods
Rendering of services
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2

OPERATING PROFIT
Operating profit is stated after charging:
2016
52 weeks
£’000

Bad debt provision
Operating lease rentals:
– Plant and machinery
– Land & buildings
Intangible assets (Note 9)
– Amortisation
– Impairment
Depreciation:
- Owned assets (Note 10)
- Assets held under finance leases (Note 10)
- Impairment (Note 10)
Auditors remuneration

2015
52 weeks
£’000

544

244

708
7,159

661
6,967

2,633
-

2,618
448

18,528
220
1,363
197

17,114
224
1,892
176

2016
52 weeks
£’000

2015
52 weeks
£’000

Fees payable to the Group’s auditor

Fees payable to the Group's auditor for the audit of the
Group’s annual financial statements

62

60

105
30
197

101
161

All other services

-

15

Total non-audit fees

-

15

Fees payable to the Group’s auditor for other services to
the Group
The audit of the Society’s subsidiaries
Other audit fees
Total audit fees
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3

STAFF NUMBERS AND COSTS
The average number employed by the Group
(including directors) was:
Full-time
Part-time

2016
52 weeks
Number

2015
52 weeks
Number

3,254
5,385

3,400
5,288

8,639

8,688

The number of full time equivalent employees during the 52 weeks ended
23 January 2016 was 5,550 (2015: 5,638).
Aggregate amounts paid in respect of:
Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Defined contribution pension scheme costs
(note 18)

£’000

£’000

112,865
6,557
4,509

110,839
6,779
4,840

123,931

122,458

Further information on Directors’ Fees is included on pages 26 to 28.
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4

EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS
2016
52 weeks
£’000
Movement in onerous leases and provisions
Costs arising from the reorganisation of business
Anglia transfer of engagements
Other exceptional costs
Pension curtailment gain

2015
52 weeks
£’000

180
4,565
787
167
-

1,589
3,155
3,285
436
(3,600)

5,699

4,865

The Group is committed to a number of onerous leases on trading properties. These
provisions have been reviewed during the year and gave rise to an increase in the
provision of £180,000 (2015: £1,589,000).
During the year, the Group has undertaken reviews of its business, sites and support
functions and gave rise to costs of £4,565,000 (2015: £3,155,000) which include
redundancy and personnel costs, professional fees and site closure costs.
During 2014, Anglia Regional Co-operative Society Limited transferred its engagements to
Central England Co-operative Limited. Costs associated with the transfer of engagements
amount to £787,000 (2015: £3,285,000) and include integration costs associated with the
pension scheme, redundancy and other costs associated with the transfer of engagements.
During the prior year, the Midlands Co-operative Society Limited Employee’s Pension
Scheme and the Anglia Regional Co-operative Society Limited Employee’s Superannuation
Fund were wound up and a new scheme, The Central England Co-operative Limited
Pension Scheme was created. A curtailment gain was recognised following the settlement
of liabilities for eligible pension scheme members.
Other exceptional costs include property provisions and legal costs.
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5

INTEREST AND DIVIDENDS RECEIVABLE

Note

Interest receivable
Dividends receivable
11

6

INTEREST PAYABLE

Note

Interest payable on bank loans
Interest payable on finance lease
Interest unwind on Central Asset Reserve
Unwinding of discounted provisions

7

16
16
17

2016
52 weeks
£’000

2015
52 weeks
£’000

93
4,774

170
525

4,867

695

2016
52 weeks
£’000

2015
52 weeks
£’000

963
87
2,565
544

748
75
2,528
990

4,159

4,341

PAYMENTS TO AND ON BEHALF OF STAKEHOLDERS

Member benefits
Membership & Community funding and other grants
Members’ dividend
Total members’ distributions
Co-operative Party
Community dividend
Employee dividend
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2016
52 weeks
£’000

2015
52 weeks
£’000

463
507
2,409
3,379

571
564
2,219
3,354

125
215
963

120
198
1,212

4,682

4,884

CENTRAL ENGLAND CO-OPERATIVE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 23 JANUARY 2016
8 TAXATION
Current tax:
Provided on chargeable income and gains in the period
Total current tax
Deferred taxation:
Origination and reversal of timing differences
Adjustments in respect of prior periods
Effect of tax rate change on opening balance

Total taxation

2016
52 weeks
£’000

2015
52 weeks
£’000

(1,901)
(1,901)

(8,556)
(8,556)

483
(6)
(4,251)
(3,774)

3,965
2,552
6,517

(5,675)

(2,039)

The standard rate of tax applied to reported profit on ordinary activities is 20.18% (2015: 21.36%).
The applicable tax rate has change following the substantive enactment of the Finance Act 2015.
Reductions in the UK corporation tax rate from 23% to 21% (effective from 1 April 2014) and 20%
(effective from 1 April 2015) were substantively enacted on 2 July 2013. Further reductions to 19%
(effective from 1 April 2017) and to 18% (effective from 1 April 2020) were substantively enacted
on 26 October 2015. This will reduce the company’s future current tax charge accordingly. The
deferred tax asset at 23 January 2016 has been calculated based on these rates.
There is no expiry date on timing differences, unused tax losses or tax credits.
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8 TAXATION - (CONTINUED)
Factors affecting the tax charge for the period
The tax charge for 2016 is higher (2015: higher) than the standard rate of corporation tax in
the UK of 20.18% (2015: 21.36%). The differences are explained below:

2016
52 weeks
£’000
Profit before taxation

2015
52 weeks
£’000

8,763

5,380

Current tax at 20.18% (2015: 21.36%)
Effects of:
Fixed asset differences
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes
Income not taxable for tax purposes
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of prior periods
Current tax credited directly to equity
Adjustment to deferred tax to average rate 20.18%
Deferred tax not recognised
Pension scheme adjustments

(1,768)

(1,148)

(1,320)
(191)
982
(6)
(1,901)
(1,241)
(230)
-

(2,692)
(329)
33
2,549
(8,556)
(697)
8,801

Tax charge for the period

(5,675)

(2,039)
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9

INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Software
£’000

Goodwill
£’000

Total
£’000

Cost
At 25 January 2015
Additions
Transfers
Disposals

9,200
669
(10)
(161)

53,266
41
(2,848)

62,466
710
(10)
(3,009)

At 23 January 2016

9,698

50,459

60,157

Amortisation
At 25 January 2015
Provided this period
Disposals

8,023
366
(161)

26,700
2,267
(2,626)

34,723
2,633
(2,787)

At 23 January 2016

8,228

26,341

34,569

Net book value
At 23 January 2016

1,470

24,118

25,588

At 24 January 2015

1,177

26,566

27,743

In line with the Group’s accounting policies, an annual review of the carrying value of
goodwill has been undertaken which identified an impairment of £nil (2015: £448,000).
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10 TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Investment
Trade
properties properties
£’000
£’000

Plant &
Transport
machinery
£’000
£’000

Total
£’000

Cost or valuation
At 25 January 2015
Additions
Transfers
Disposals
Revaluation adjustment

113,118
991
3,587
(10,095)
4,381

269,822
11,448
(3,570)
(3,601)
-

174,664
15,091
(7)
(4,094)
-

15,455
1,304
(694)
-

573,059
28,834
10
(18,484)
4,381

At 23 January 2016

111,982

274,099

185,654

16,065

587,800

Depreciation
At 25 January 2015
Provided this period
Impairment
Transfers
Disposals
Revaluation adjustment

56,585
5,125
935
(432)
(1,324)
-

117,242
12,190
428
(1)
(3,364)
-

-

60,889

126,495

10,132

197,516

Net book value
At 23 January 2016

111,982

213,210

59,159

5,933

390,284

At 24 January 2015

113,118

213,237

57,422

6,069

At 23 January 2016

433
(433)

9,386
1,439
(693)
-

183,213
18,754
1,363
(5,381)
(433)

389,846

BNP Paribas Real estate, independent qualified valuers, (Richard Gill MRICS and Peter
Fletcher BSc MRICS) have inspected and valued approximately one fifth of investment
properties as at 23 January 2016. The remainder have been valued by BNP Paribas
Real estate at 23 January 2016 and will be inspected and revalued over the course of
the next four years. The valuation has been prepared in accordance with the RICS
Valuation – Professional Standards January 2014 “Red Book” incorporating the IVSC
International Valuation Standards.
These valuations have been incorporated into the financial statements and the resulting
revaluation adjustments have been taken to the income statement. The revaluations
during the period resulted in a revaluation gain of £4,815,000 (2015: revaluation gain of
£7,170,000).
Tangible fixed assets with a carrying value of £53,078,000 (2015: £29,538,000) are
pledged as security for the Group’s bank loans.
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10

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS - (CONTINUED)
Assets in the course of construction included within trade properties amounts to
£2,539,000 (2015: £3,227,000). Assets under construction are not depreciated.
The Group no longer capitalises borrowing costs connected to the purchase of a fixed
asset. The cumulative value of finance costs previously capitalised and included within
fixed assets (cost or valuation) amounts to £1,380,000 (2015: £1,380,000).
Included within fixed assets are assets with a net book value of £840,000 (2015:
£1,074,000) relating to assets held under finance lease. Depreciation charged on these
assets amounted to £220,000 (2015: £224,000) during the period.
Transfers arise to reflect the most appropriate class for each asset and include seven
sites transferring from trade to investment and three properties transferring from
investment to trade.
In line with the Group’s accounting policies, an impairment review of loss making units
was performed during the period and gave rise to an impairment of £1,363,000 (2015:
£1,892,000).
Assets held for resale are included within trade properties and amount to £nil (2015:
£1,996,000) and plant and machinery £nil (2015 - £244,000). Assets held for resale are
not depreciated.

The net book value of land and buildings
comprises:
Investment properties:
Freehold
Leasehold
Trade properties:
Freehold
Leasehold
Total properties:
Freehold
Leasehold

The historical cost of investment properties
now included at valuation:
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Net book value
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2016
£’000

2015
£’000

107,702
4,280
111,982

109,250
3,868
113,118

193,994
19,216
213,210

196,445
14,796
211,241

301,696
23,496
325,192

305,695
18,664
324,359

99,328
(12,024)
87,304

106,235
(18,230)
88,005
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INVESTMENTS
Fixed assets

The Co-operative Group Limited – shares
Other I&P societies – shares
Other I&P societies – loans
Companies – quoted
Companies – not quoted
British Government – quoted
Other
Funeral plans

Dividends/interest
2016
2015
52 weeks 52 weeks
£’000
£’000

2016
£’000

2015
£’000

2,677
25
63
731
5,835
5
4
97,202

2,677
25
63
1,604
6,000
31
4
83,528

107
4,667
-

98
425
2
-

106,542

93,932

4,774

525

93
4,867

166
4
695

Interest earned on cash balances
Other interest

In line with the Group’s accounting policies, quoted and unquoted shares have been
revalued to their fair values, which has generated a fair value loss of £418,000 (2015: gain
of £165,000). Quoted investments are based on active market rates.
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INVESTMENTS - (CONTINUED)

Co-operative
Group
Limited
£'000

I&P
Society

Quoted
shares

Unquoted
shares

£'000

£'000

2,677

88

1,635

6,000

83,528

-

-

-

-

13,563

-

-

(481)

-

(6,558)

2,677

88

6,000

90,533

-

-

(418)

2,677

88

736

£'000

Funeral
plans
£'000

Carrying amount
At 25 January 2015
Additions
Disposals and
redemptions
At 23 January 2016

Change in fair value
Net book value at
23 January 2016

12

STOCKS

Goods for resale
Consignment stock
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1,154

(165)

5,835

6,669

97,202

2016
£’000

2015
£’000

39,411
-

41,206
1,274

39,411

42,480

CENTRAL ENGLAND CO-OPERATIVE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 23 JANUARY 2016

13

DEBTORS
Within one year
2016
2015
£’000
£’000
Trade debtors
Deferred tax
Other debtors
Prepayments and accrued income

After one year
2016
2015
£’000
£’000

7,471
873
8,510

7,636
1,311
7,893

21,309
-

42,516
-

16,854

16,840

21,309

42,516

The deferred taxation asset comprises:

Spread pension contributions
Pension scheme
Other timing differences
Unutilised losses
Accelerated capital losses
Capital Gains
Business Combinations

2016
£’000

2015
£’000

3,673
8,585
164
14,129
444
(5,201)
(485)

5,652
24,789
1,553
14,770
860
(4,570)
(538)

21,309

42,516

As a result of the Central Asset Reserve, the Society will receive a deduction against
current tax of £9.4m (2015: £28.3m) over the next 2 years. Consequently a deferred tax
asset of £3.7m (2015: 5.7m) has been recognised at 23 January 2016.
There are no other unrecognised deferred tax assets or liabilities.
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ASSETS HELD FOR RESALE

Land & Buildings
Fixtures

2016
£’000

2015
£’000

-

1,997
244

-

2,241

Assets held for resale are included within note 10.

15

CREDITORS

Within one year
2016
2015
£’000
£’000

After one year
2016
2015
£’000
£’000

Trade creditors
Bank overdraft
Central Asset Reserve liability
Funeral plans
Other taxation and social security
Other creditors
Accruals and deferred income
Payments to and on behalf of stakeholders

34,308
6,400
9,877
4,461
4,809
17,418
1,019

27,858
5,276
6,400
8,414
7,138
4,886
21,720
1,974

89,320
88,893
2,060
-

92,707
75,724
1,208
-

78,292

83,666

180,273

169,639

Trade creditors includes £nil (2015: £1,274,000) in respect of commitments to purchase
vehicles on consignment and obligations. The corresponding assets are included in stocks.
The Group holds an interest rate swap with a principal value of £12,500,000, which
matures on 31 March 2016. The swap is recorded at market value £37,000 (2015: liability
of £183,000) and is included in other creditors.
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BORROWINGS
Within one year
2015
2016
£'000

Bank loan
Finance lease
obligations

-

£'000

-

After one year
2015
2016

Interest payable
2015
2016
52 weeks 52 weeks
£'000
£'000

£'000

£'000

22,000

28,773

963

748

245

268

440

694

87

75

245

268

22,440

29,467

1,050

823

Borrowings falling due within:

2016
£’000

2015
£’000

One year
Between one and two years
Between two and five years
Over five years

245
220
22,218
2

268
29,029
339
99

22,685

29,735

The Group’s bank loan is a revolving credit facility of £40,000,000 (2015: £29,000,000)
which is repayable on 22 January 2021, £22,000,000 (2015: £29,000,000) of which was
drawn down at the year end. Interest cover and leverage ratio are covenants associated
with the facility, with the interest rate driven by the results of the leverage ratio.
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PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES
Onerous
leases

£’000
As at 25 January 2015
Created this period
Credit to the income statement
Unwinding of discount
Utilised this period
Released this period
As at 23 January 2016

Discontinued
Other
operations provisions
Provision
£’000
£’000

Total

£’000

8,057
152
(20)
26
(1,374)
-

10,494
68
(73)
518
(3,196)
-

2,854
2,079
(797)
(137)

21,405
2,299
(93)
544
(5,367)
(137)

6,841

7,811

3,999

18,651

The onerous lease provision represents an assessment of the costs to cover rent and rates
for leasehold premises where the Group is committed to future rental payments on
properties that are in excess of incomes received, taking account of the anticipated period
until the leases are assigned or reassigned. The assessment, which is undertaken at the
end of each accounting period, is made on a property by property basis. The provision is
expected to be utilised within the next 11 years (2015: 12 years).
The discontinued operations provision represents an estimate of amounts payable under
contracts relating to property costs, redundancy and computer costs which are expected to
unwind in the next 1 to 13 years.
Other provisions represent an assessment of costs associated with the re-organisation of
the business and site closures of £2.3m (2015: £1.2m), the decommissioning of petrol
filling stations of £0.4m (2015: £0.4m), property provisions of £1.1m (2015: £1m) and other
provisions of £0.1m (2015: £0.2m).
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EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Defined Benefit Pension Scheme
The Group currently operates a defined benefit pension scheme, the Central England
Co-operative Society Limited Pension Scheme. This Scheme was created by merging the
Midlands Co-operative Society Limited Employees’ Pension Scheme which closed to future
accrual and new entrants on 30 July 2011 and the Anglia Regional Co-operative Society
Limited Employees’ Superannuation Fund which closed to future accrual on 14 August
2009.
The assets of the scheme are held in a separate trustee administered fund.
The Scheme is subject to the Statutory Funding Objective under the Pensions Act 2004. A
valuation of the Scheme is carried out at least once every three years to determine whether
the Statutory Funding Objective is met. As part of the process the Society agrees with the
Trustees of the Scheme the contributions to be paid to address any shortfall against the
Statutory Funding Objective.
The most recent comprehensive actuarial valuation of the Scheme was carried out as at
31 December 2014. The results of that valuation have been updated to 23 January 2016
allowing for cash flows in and out of the Scheme and changes to assumptions over the
period.
Prior year figures included in these disclosures have been restated under FRS 102 for
comparison, which is a requirement as part of the transition to FRS 102.
The deficit on the defined benefit scheme is recognised in full on the balance sheet and
represents the difference between the fair value of the assets and the present value of the
defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date.
Finance cost is recognised in the income statement based on the interest on pension
assets less the interest on pension scheme liabilities.
Differences between the interest and actual return on assets, experience gains and losses
and changes in actuarial assumptions are included directly in Other Comprehensive
Income.
The Group currently operates one defined benefit scheme.
The Society implemented a pension deficit reduction arrangement (Central Asset Reserve)
which has resulted in additional scheme assets of £109.572m being recognised within the
FRS 102 valuation at 23 January 2016. The scheme assets are underpinned by way of
subordinated pledges given by Central Midlands Estates Limited, a subsidiary of the
Society.
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EMPLOYEE BENEFITS – (CONTINUED)
During the year the Group made payments under the Central Asset Reserve of £2,675,000
(2015: £1,529,000 plus normal contributions of £2,762,000).
The latest full actuarial valuation for the Central England Co-operative Society Limited
Pension Scheme was carried out at 31 December 2014. The results of this valuation have
been updated for FRS 102 purposes to 23 January 2016 by a qualified actuary. The
principal assumptions used by the actuary were:
2016

2015

Rate of increase in pensions in payment

3.15%

3.00%

Discount rate

4.00%

3.30%

Inflation assumption

3.30%

3.10%

The mortality assumptions used are based on the "SAPS" standard “S2 series” tables with
an allowance for future mortality improvements using the CMI 2015 projections with a longterm rate of improvement of 1.25% pa. The assumptions are such that a current 45 year old
non-pensioner member who later retires at age 65 will live on average a further 24
(2015: 24) years after retirement if they are male and a further 26 (2015: 27) years if they
are female. A current pensioner member aged 65 will live on average a further 22 (2015:
22) years if they are male and for a further 25 (2015: 25) years if they are female.
The assumptions used by the actuary are the best estimates chosen in accordance with
FRS 102 requirements from a range of possible actuarial assumptions which, due to the
timescale covered, may not necessarily be borne out in practice.
The fair value of the scheme’s assets, which are not intended to be realised in the short
term and may be subject to significant change before they are realised, and the present
value of the scheme’s liabilities, which are derived from cashflow projections over long
periods and thus inherently uncertain were:

Fair value of scheme assets
Present value of funded obligations
Deficit in the scheme
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2016
£’000
595,678

2015
£’000
630,644

(687,861)

(800,869)

(92,183)

(170,225)
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PENSION COMMITMENTS – (CONTINUED)
Scheme assets do not include any property occupied by the Group.
Changes in the fair value of scheme assets:

Opening fair value of scheme assets
Interest on assets
Actuarial (losses)/gains
Contributions by employer
Administration costs
Benefits paid

2016
52 weeks
£’000
630,644
20,388
(29,695)
2,675
(1,236)
(27,098)

2015
52 weeks
£’000
557,819
24,144
91,444
2,762
(1,137)
(44,388)

Closing fair value of scheme assets

595,678

630,644

Changes in the present value of scheme obligations:

Opening obligation
Service cost
Interest cost
Members contributions
Actuarial (gains)/losses
Plan settlements and curtailments
Benefits paid
Closing obligation

2016
52 weeks
£’000
800,869
25,982
(111,892)
(27,098)
687,861

2015
52 weeks
£’000
648,534
28,116
172,207
(3,600)
(44,388)
800,869

(1,236)
20,388
(25,982)
(6,830)

(1,137)
24,144
(28,116)
(5,109)

Analysis of amounts included in interest payable:
Administration cost
Expected return on pension scheme assets
Interest on pension scheme liabilities
Other Finance Cost
Pension curtailment gain (note 4)

(6,830)
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PENSION COMMITMENTS – (CONTINUED)
Analysis of amounts recognised in statement of comprehensive income:

2016
52 weeks
£’000
Cumulative at beginning of period

2015
52 weeks
£’000

(267,518)

(186,755)

(29,695)
46,392
(8,500)
74,000

91,444
(172,207)

Recognised during the period

82,197

(80,763)

Cumulative at end of period

(185,321)

(267,518)

2016
41%
17%
42%
100%

2015
44%
16%
40%
100%

(Losses)/Gains on scheme assets in excess of interest
Experience gains on liabilities
Losses from changes to demographic assumptions
Gains/(Losses) from changes in financial assumptions

Assets in the plan as a percentage of total plan assets:
Bonds
Equities
Other

The scheme holds quoted securities and these have been valued at current bid-price. The
amounts above do not include the Central Asset Reserve asset.

Defined Contribution Scheme
The Group also operates a defined contribution scheme. The contributions payable to the
scheme in respect of the accounting period are charged to the revenue account.
The contributions payable to the defined contribution scheme in respect of the accounting
period are charged to the income statement, which amounted to £4,509,000
(2015: £4,840,000).
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SHARE CAPITAL

Contributions
Withdrawals
Interest
Movement in period
Opening balance
Closing balance

2016
52 weeks
£’000

2015
52 weeks
£’000

511
(459)
52
201
253

216
(775)
(559)
184
(375)

22,550
22,803

22,925
22,550

At 23 January 2016 the Society had a total of 1,731,005 (2015: 1,666,792) members each
entitled to one vote. At the reporting date the whole of the share capital comprises nonequity shares of £1 each attracting interest at rates between 0% and 2.25% (2015: between
0% and 2.25%).
Share capital is generally withdrawable on demand; however, in accordance with the Society
rules, the Board may suspend the right of withdrawal for a limited time and may impose a
notice period for withdrawals should they consider it to be in the best interests of the Society.
The Society rules for the distribution of the final surplus in the event of winding-up after
repayment of the paid-up, share capital state that such assets shall not be paid to or
distributed among the members of the Society but shall be:
a.

b.

transferred to one or more other societies in membership of the Co-operatives UK
Limited having the same or similar rule provisions as regards surplus distribution as this
rule, as may be determined by the members at an ordinary or special meeting; or
if not so transferred shall be paid or transferred to the Co-operatives UK Limited.

Dividends to members are paid by way of vouchers redeemable against purchases.
The Group operates a Share Incentive Plan (SIP) to benefit colleagues. Colleagues can
invest a proportion of their salary which may not exceed the lower of £1,800 or 10% of an
colleague’s pay, on which they earn a return of 2.25% in that period. Interest earned is
recognised in the share capital note. Shares withdrawn after a five year period are paid free
of income tax and national insurance.
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SHARE CAPITAL – (CONTINUED)
The Society is allowed to allocate matching shares under rules governed by HMRC. As an
incentive to colleagues to join and remain in the SIP, the Society will match the first £10
paid in by each colleague for the purchase of partnership shares in the first year of the
scheme by awarding £10 in matching shares. Each year colleagues who continue to
contribute will receive a further £10 in matching shares for the first £10 of partnership
shares acquired in later years. A year for the purposes of matching shares will be the
Society’s financial year.
As long as the matching shares are held for at least five years, they can be redeemed with
the Society free of income tax and national insurance contributions. If they are redeemed
before this date, income tax and national insurance contributions will normally be payable.
The issue of matching shares is discretionary. The Society therefore reserves the right to
amend or withdraw the issuing of matching shares at its discretion.

20

RESERVES
The Society’s reserves are as follows:
The Revenue Reserve represents cumulative profits or losses net of dividends paid and
other adjustments.
The Non Distributable Reserve represents the cumulative effect of revaluations of
investment properties which are revalued to fair value at each reporting date.
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CASHFLOW STATEMENT
Reconciliation of operating profit to cash generated by
operations:

2016
52 weeks
£’000

2015
52 weeks
£’000

Operating Profit

19,835

18,854

Adjustment for:
Gain on investment properties
Profit on disposal
Curtailment gain
Depreciation and impairments
Amortisation of goodwill
Payments to and on behalf of stakeholders
Purchase of fixed asset investments
Fair value movements
(Increase)/Decrease in debtors
Increase / (Decrease in creditors
Decrease / (Increase) in stocks
Decrease in provisions
Other non-cash movements
Cash contribution for retirement benefit obligations

(4,815)
(1,307)
20,111
2,633
(5,639)
(7,267)
(337)
(84)
11,865
1,971
(3,518)
210
(2,675)

(7,170)
(860)
(3,600)
23,400
2,316
(4,243)
(6,035)
(570)
5,729
(1,729)
(1,395)
(7,600)
(1,529)

30,983

15,568
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FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS
Finance leases
The minimum finance lease payments to which the Group is committed in future years are:
2016
£’000
Within one year
In the second to fifth years inclusive
Over five years

2015
£’000

245
438
2

268
594
99

685

961

Obligations under finance leases are shown as part of loans in note 16.
Operating leases - receivable
The future minimum operating lease payments to the Group under non-cancellable leases
are:

Operating leases expiring:
Within one year
In the second to fifth years inclusive
Over five years
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Land &
buildings

Land &
buildings

2016
£’000

2015
£’000

2,142
5,414
48,776

1,729
4,248
46,603

56,332

52,580
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FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS - (CONTINUED)
Operating leases - payable
The minimum operating lease payments to which the Group is committed in future years
are:
Land &
buildings
2016
£’000
Operating leases expiring:
Within one year
In the second to fifth years inclusive
Over five years

Other
2016
£’000

Land &
buildings
2015
£’000

Other
2015
£’000

1,747
2,698
48,933

735
2,642
5,231

308
2,207
48,986

149
3,727
6,419

53,378

8,608

51,501

10,295

Included within the minimum operating lease payments are onerous lease and discontinued
operation commitments of £20,427,000 (2015: £28,147,000) which are fully provided for as
described in note 17.

The Society holds lease commitments on operating leases from the Society’s former
leased travel branches. As part of the disposal of the travel business, Thomas Cook
Travel took occupation under licence of the Society’s former leases from 4 October
2011 for outgoings and costs associated with these properties. The lease commitments
on these operating leases at 23 January 2016 are as follows:

Within one year
In the second to fifth years inclusive
Over five years

2016
£’000

2015
£’000

511
1,204
207

422
1,025
952

1,922

2,399

Capital commitments
Amounts contracted for but not provided for in the financial statements were £8.7 million
(2015: £17.6 million).
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SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

Central Midlands Estates Limited
Terry Smith Limited
M.C.S. Funeral Services Limited
Shaws Petroleum Limited
Oakwell Stores Society Limited
Midlands Co-op Scottish Limited Partnership
Midlands Co-op General Partner Limited
Advantage Motor Group Limited
Leicester Carriage Builders 2002 Limited
Metro Discount Stores (Midlands) Limited
Ilkeston Travel Services Limited
Ken Ives Motors (Derby) Limited
Ilkeston Motor Finance Limited
Ilkeston Consumer Co-operative Society Pension
Trustees Limited
Anglia Co-operative (Food) Limited
Anglia Co-operative Properties Limited
Co-operative Funeral Services (Anglia) Limited
Midlands Co-operative Pension Trustee Limited
Food & Funerals Properties Limited
Westgate Optical Limited
Yaxley Farm Limited

% of
Equity
owned
100
100
100
100
100
83
100
100
100
100
100
100
100

Principal activity
Property Management
Coffin Manufacturer
Funeral Services
Non-Trading
Corporate Trustee
Investment in Corporate Bonds
Partnership Administration
Motor Dealership
Non-Trading
Non-Trading
Non-Trading
Non-Trading
Non-Trading

100

Non-Trading

100
100
100
100
100
100
100

Food retailing
Property management
Funeral services
Dormant
Property management
Optical Retailing
Farming

All subsidiaries are registered within the United Kingdom.
On 23 January 2016, Co-op Funeral Services (Anglia) Limited, Anglia Co-operative (Food)
Limited Food and Funeral Properties Limited transferred their engagements to Central
England Co-operative Limited.
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SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES - (CONTINUED)
Subsidiary audit exemptions
Central England Co-operative Limited has issued guarantees over the liabilities of the
following companies at 23 January 2016 under section 479 of Companies Act 2006 and
these entities are exempt from the requirements of the Act relating to the audit of individual
accounts by virtue of section 479A of the Act.
Company Name

Company Number

Terry Smith Limited
Midlands Co-op General Partner Limited
Advantage Motor Group Limited
Westgate Optical Limited
Yaxley Farm Limited

2095157
SC410710
5800376
7526437
2553217

The Group currently holds investments in the following entity:
Associated undertakings
Anglia Home Furnishings
Limited

24

Principal
activity
Furniture
retailing

Country of
incorporation
United Kingdom

Class of shares held
Preference

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Central England Co-operative Limited continues to hold a preference share interest in
Anglia Home Furnishings Limited and maintains certain trading relationships relating to its
normal trading activities which give rise to payables and receivables being due at the
reporting date. The net amount due from Anglia Home Furnishings Limited in respect of
these relationships was £21,000 (2015: £63,000).
A list of key management personnel is included in page 1. Further information on Directors’
Fees is included on pages 26 – 29.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The carrying value of the Society’s financial assets and liabilities are summarised by
category below:
2016
£’000

2015
£’000

736

1,635

5,835

6,000

97,202

83,528

63

63

8,344

8,947

Financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss
Quoted investments
Unquoted investments
Funeral plans
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Other societies loans
Trade debtors and other debtors

Equity instruments measured at cost less impairment
Fixed asset investments

2,706

2,706

Financial liabilities measured at fair value
Interest rate swap

37

183

98,770

84,138

685

962

-

5,276

Bank loan

22,000

28,773

Trade creditors and other creditors

44,560

41,680

Funeral plans
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Finance leases payables
Bank overdraft
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The Group's income, expenses, gains and losses in respect of financial instruments
are summarised below:
2016
52 weeks
£’000

Fair value (losses)/gains
Interest expense

(268)
1,050

2015
52 weeks
£’000

165
823

The interest rate swap settles on a quarterly basis. The floating rate on the interest rate
swap is three months LIBOR. The Society settles the difference between the fixed and
floating interest rate on a net basis.
Interest rate swap contracts exchanging floating rate interest amounts for fixed rate interest
amounts are designated as cash flow hedges to reduce the Society’s cash flow exposure
resulting from variable interest rates on borrowings. The hedge cash flows are expected to
occur and to affect the profit or loss over the period to maturity of the interest rate swap.
During the year, the fair value movement recognised in the income statement was a loss of
£268,000 (2015: gain of £165,000).
A charge of £1,050,000 (2015: £823,000) were recognised in the income statement in
relation to interest on financial instruments.
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TRANSITION TO FRS 102
The Group has adopted Financial Reporting Standard 102 (FRS 102) issued by the
Financial Reporting Council for the 52 weeks ended 23 January 2016. The following
disclosures are required in the year of transition. The last financial statements under
previous UK GAAP were for the 52 weeks ended 24 January 2015 and the date of
transition to FRS 102 was therefore 25 January 2014. As a consequence of adopting FRS
102, a number of accounting policies have changed to comply with that standard and
comparative prior year amounts have been restated.
Changes for FRS 102 adoption
Fair value of Investments
The Group is required to recognise quoted and unquoted investments at fair value rather
than cost. At 25 January 2014, the fair values of the investments decreased the previously
stated carrying value by £110,000. At 24 January 2015, the fair values of investments
increased the previously stated carrying value by £120,000.
The Group has always recognised investment properties at fair value, the consequence of
adopting FRS 102 is to recognise the movement in fair values (2015: £7,170,000) within the
income statement.
Financial instruments
The Group is required to recognise derivative financial instruments on the Statement of
Financial Position as a financial asset or liability, at fair value. The Group holds one
derivative, an interest rate SWAP, and a financial liability of £228,000 has been recognised
in the Statement of Financial Position at the date of transition, 25 January 2014. At
24 January 2015, the fair value of the financial liability was £183,000 and the movement of
£45,000 has been recognised in the income statement for the year ended 24 January 2015.
Discounting of long term liabilities
Under FRS 102, the Group is now required to re-classify some liabilities as ‘long term’ and
recognise them at discounted cost. The impact of discounting was to reduce the liabilities
by £427,000 at 25 January 2014 and increase the liability by £35,000 at 24 January 2015.
Discounting of Provisions
Under FRS 102, the Group is required to discount provisions using a risk free rate of return
at the year-end date. The impact of discounting increased provisions by £5,384,000 at
25 January 2014 and decreased the provision by £784,000 at 24 January 2015.
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TRANSITION TO FRS 102 - (CONTINUED)
Employee Benefits
The Group is required to recognise a provision for employee benefits earned but not taken
at the year end. FRS 102 requires the cost of short-term compensated absences to be
recognised when employees render the service that increases their entitlement.
Consequently an additional accrual of £1,029,000 at 25 January 2014 has been made to
reflect this. The provision at 24 January 2015 had increased to £1,058,000 and the
increase in provision of £29,000 has been charged to income statement in the year ended
24 January 2015.
Under FRS 102, the Group is required to recognised finance costs on the pension scheme
deficit by applying the discount rate to the net scheme liabilities. Under UK GAAP, the
Group recorded finance income of £3,476,000 at January 2015. Under FRS 102, the Group
now records a finance cost of £5,109,000. At 24 January 2015, this generated a movement
in interest costs of £8,585,000 which is now charged to income statement.
Taxation
Following the transition to FRS 102, the current and deferred taxation has been restated to
reflect changes to the profit before tax as noted in the Restated Group Income Statement.
Under FRS 102, the Group is required to recognise additional deferred taxation on
investment properties, capital losses, rolled over gains and business combinations. The
effect of these changes was an adjustment to equity in 2014 totalling £1,538,000 and 2015
£2,482,000.

RESTATED GROUP STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
24 January 2015
£’000
£’000
Original members’ funds
Prior year FRS 102 adjustments brought
forward

Recognition of investments at fair value
Recognition of interest SWAP at fair value
Discount unwind on long term liabilities
Recognition of employee benefit liabilities
Discount rate change
Restated Taxation

161,850
(7,862)

219,849
-

153,988

219,849
(110)
(228)
427
(1,029)
(5,384)
(1,538)

120
45
(35)
(29)
784
(2,482)
(1,597)

Restated members’ funds

152,391
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25 January 2014
£’000
£’000

(7,862)
211,987
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TRANSITION TO FRS 102 - (CONTINUED)

RESTATED GROUP INCOME STATEMENT
24 January
2015
£’000
Retained profit for the year under UK GAAP
Investments at fair values
Movement in fair value of interest rate SWAP
Discount unwind on long term liabilities
Movement in employee benefits
Gain on revaluation of investment properties
Restatement of discount unwind on provisions
Pension Scheme deficit interest costs
Restated tax on profit
Restated retained profit for the period

4,651
120
45
(35)
(29)
7,170
784
(8,585)
(780)
3,341
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Notice of Annual Meeting
The Annual Meeting of Members will be held as follows:

Monday 25 April 2016 at 7.00 pm
LEICESTER – The Keith Weller Suite, Leicester City Football Club, King Power
Stadium, Albert Way, Leicester, LE2 7FL
NORWICH – The Sunningdale Suite, Dunston Hall, Ipswich Road, Norwich,
NR14 8PQ
STAFFORD – Best Western Tillington Hall Hotel, Eccleshall Road, Stafford,
ST16 1JJ

Tuesday 26 April 2016 at 7.00 pm
BURTON-ON-TRENT – The Albion Suite, Burton Albion Football Club, The Pirelli
Stadium, Princess Way, Burton on Trent, DE13 0AR
CHESTERFIELD – The Barcelona Suite, Casa Hotel, Lockoford Lane, Chesterfield,
S41 7JB
KETTERING – The Fair Isle Suite, Kettering Conference Centre, Thurston Drive,
Kettering, NN15 6PB

Wednesday 27 April 2016 at 7.00 pm
COALVILLE – Stephenson College, Thornborough Road, Coalville, Leics, LE67 3TN
EASTWOOD – Eastwood Hall, Mansfield Road, Eastwood, NG16 3SS
MARKET HARBOROUGH – The Cromwell Suite, Three Swans Hotel, High Street,
Market Harborough, LE16 7NJ

Thursday 28 April 2016 at 7.00 pm
BIRMINGHAM – Halls 9 & 10, International Convention Centre (ICC), Broad Street,
Birmingham, B1 2EA
DERBY – Derby County Football Club, iPro Stadium, Pride Park, Derby, DE24 8XL
PETERBOROUGH – Carmichael Suite, Kingsgate Conference Centre, 2 Staplee Way,
Parnwell, Peterborough, PE1 4YT
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Agenda of Annual Meeting

1.

Welcome & Introductions

2.

Report of the Board of Directors and Financial Statements, including the
Annual Report of the Remuneration Committee.

3.

Appointment of Auditors: Deloitte LLP, Four Brindleyplace, Birmingham,
B1 2HZ

4.

Distribution of Trading Surplus. The Board of Directors proposes the
following distributions from trading surplus:





Members’ Dividend: 1 pence per point*
Colleague Dividend: £1,059,000
Community Dividend: £208,000
Membership and Community 2016/17 Budget: £375,000

* On purchases made between 9 August 2015 and 23 January 2016

5.

Independent Non-Executive Directors. To confirm the co-option approved by
the Society Board of Directors in March 2016 of Rachel Wilkinson and
Martyn McCarthy as Independent Non-Executive Directors for a period of twelve
months, to further strengthen the experience and skills of the elected Board of
Directors.

6.

Membership & Community Update.

7.

Annual Report & Accounts of the Society Co-operative Party Councils
(Anglia, Central England Northern, Central England Eastern & Southern, and
Central England Western Regions).

James Watts
Society Secretary
April 2016
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